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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Boston, Massachusetts:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Boston, Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2003, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Boston’s management. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of certain entities, which represent 4% and 33% of the assets and revenues, respectively, of the
aggregate remaining fund information and 24% and 23% of the assets and revenues, respectively, of the
discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion on the financial statements, insofar as it relates to the
aggregate remaining fund information and the discretely presented component units and their effects on the
governmental and fiduciary activities, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. The financial statements of the permanent funds and private-purpose trust funds were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Boston, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2003, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Boston’s basic financial statements. The combining financial statements and
schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
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required part of the basic financial statements of the City of Boston. This information has been subjected to
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
presented in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 13 and the schedules of funding progress and
employers’ contributions on page 59 are not required parts of the basic financial statements, but are
supplementary information required by the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedures which consisted principally of inquires of
management regarding the metheds of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a separate report dated
December 5, 2003 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read
in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

KPMa LEP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 5, 2003
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The City of Boston provides this Management’s Discussion and Analysis to provide additionat information to the
readers of the City’s Basic Financial Statements. This narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities
of the City of Boston is for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2003. Readers are encouraged to consider this
information in conjunction with the additional information that is furnished in the City’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR).

The City of Boston is in its second year of implementing new reporting standards with significant changes in
content and structure from years prior to fiscal year end June 30, 2002.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Boston’s financial statements.
The City’s basic financial statements include three components: 1) govemment-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains required
supplementary information regarding historical pension information. These components are described below:

Basic Financial Statements

The financial statements include two types of financial statements that present different views of the City — the
Government-Wide Financial Statements and the Fund Financial Statements. These financial statements also
include the Notes to the Financial Statements that explain some of the information in the financial statements
and provide more detail.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide a broad view of the City’s operations in a manner similar to a
private-sector business. The statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the City’s
financial position, which assists in assessing the City’s economic condition at the end of the fiscal year. These are
prepared using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This
basically means they follow methods that are similar to those used by most businesses. They take into account all
revenues and expenses connected with the fiscal year even if cash involved has not been received or paid. The
government-wide financial statements include two statements:

The statement of net assets presents all of the government’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the
two reported as “net assets.” Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating,

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows until
future fiscal periods (such as uncollected taxes and eamed but unused vacation leave). This statement also
presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the City.

Both of the above financial statements have separate sections for the three different types of city programs or
activities. These three types of activities are:
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Governmental Activities — The activities in this section are mostly supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues (federal and state grants). Most services normally associated with ety government fall inio this
category, including general government, human services, public safety, public works, property and development,
parks and recreation, library, schools, county, public health programs, judgment and claims, retirement costs,
state and district assessments, debt service, and other employee benefits. :

Business-Type Activities — These functions normally are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their
costs through user fees and charges to external users of goods and services. These business-type activities of the
City include the operations of the City of Boston Convention Center Bond Fund and the Hospital Bond Fund.

Discretely Presented Component Units — These are operations for which the City has financial accountability, but
they have certain independent qualities as well. For the most part, these entities operate similar to private sector
businesses and the business-type activities described above.

The City’s four discretely presented major component units are:
Boston Public Health Commission
Boston Redevelopment Authority
Economic Development Industrial Corporation
Trustees of the Boston Public Library

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective
administrative offices. Additional information about the City’s component units is presented in the notes to the
financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements can be found immediately following this discusston and analysis.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the city government, reporting the City’s operations in
more detail than the government-wide statements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three
categories. It is important to note that these fund categories use different accounting approaches and should be
interpreted differently. The three categories of funds are:

1. Governmental Fund Financial Statements — Most of the basic services provided by the City are financed
through governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
{inancial statements, the governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources. They also focus on the balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the government’s near-term financing requirements. This
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approach is known as using the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under this approach, revenues are recorded when cash is received or when susceptible to
accrual. Expenditures are recorded when liabilities are incurred and due. These statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the City’s finances that assists in determining whether there will be adequate financial
resources available to meet the current needs of the City.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-terin financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
recongciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and the governmental activities. These
reconciliations are presented on the page immediately following each governmental fund financial statement.

The City has four governmental funds. Each fund is presented in a separate column in the governmental fund
balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances.
The City’s three major governmental funds are — the General Fund, the Special Revenue Fund, and the Capital
Projects Fund. All nonmajor governmental funds are combined in the “Other Governmental Funds™ colurnng on
these statements. The governmental funds financial statements can be found immediately following the
government-wide statements.

Of the City’s four governmental funds, the General Fund is the only fund for which a budget is legally adepted.
The Budgetary Statement or Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis is presented on
page 20. This statement provides a comparison of the original and final budget and the actual expenditures for
the current and prior year.

In accordance with state law and regulations, the City’s legally adopted general fund budget is prepared on a
“budgetary” basis instead of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP),
Among the key differences between these two sets of accounting principles are that “budgetary” records property
tax revenue as it is levied, while GAAP records it as it becomes susceptible to accrual, “budgetary” records
certain activities and transactions in the general fund that GAAP records in separate funds, and “budgetary”
records as an expenditure any amount raised to cover for a prior year deficit, and as a revenue any available
funds raised from prior year surpluses, while GAAP ignores these impacts from prior years. The difference in
accounting principles inevitably leads to varying results in excess or deficiency of revenues over expenditures.
Additional information and a reconciliation of “budgetary” to GAAP statements is provided in note 4 of the
financial statements.

2. Proprietary Funds Financial Statements — These funds are used to show activities that operate more like
those of commercial enterprises. Because these funds charge fees for services provided to outside customers
including local governments, they are known as enterprise funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. Like the government-wide
financial statements, proprietary fund financial statements use the acerual basis of accounting. No reconciliation
is needed between the government-wide financial statements for business-type activities and the proprietary fund
financial statements.
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The basic proprietary funds financial statements can be found immediately following the governmental fund
financial statements.

3. Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements — These funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the City government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of these funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. They use the accrual basis of
accounting.

The City’s fiduciary funds are the Employee Retirement Funds (the State-Boston Retirement System and the
Boston Retirement System), which accounts for the transactions, assets, liabilities, and net assets of the City
employees’ pension plan, and the Private Purpose Trust Funds, which includes money held and administered by
the City on behalf of third parties.

The fiduciary funds financial statements can be found immediately following the proprietary fund financial
statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and the fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found
immediately following the fiduciary funds’ financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information, which includes a
schedule of funding progress and a schedule of employer contributions for the State-Boston Retirement System.

Gevernment-Wide Financial Analysis

This analysis is based on the statement of net assets and statement of activities found on pages 14 and 15 of the
financial statements.

Government-Wide Highlights:

Net Assets — The total net assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at fiscal year ending June 30, 2003 by
$240.7 million (presented as “net assets”). Of this amount, $37.4 million was reported as “unrestricted net
assets.” Unrestricted net assets represent the amount available to be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations
to citizens and creditors.

Changes in Net Assets — The City’s total net assets increased by $43.5 million in fiscal year 2003. Net assets of
governmental activities increased by $66.6 million, while net assets of the business-type activities showed a
decrease of $23.1 mitlion.
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Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The
City’s combined net assets (government and business-type activities) totaled $240.7 million at the end of 2003,
compared to $197.2 million at the end of the previous year.

The components of net assets are comprised of the following: the investment in capital assets such as land,
buildings, equipment, and infrastructure (road, bridges, and other immovable assets), less any related debt used to
acquire that asset that is still outstanding — the amount is a deficit of $6.8 million indicating that the amount of
capital debt outstanding exceeds the net book value of the City’s fixed assets. The deficit in “Invested in capital
assets, net of related debt” results in part from the capitalization threshold established by the City whereby capital
assets of less that $15,000 in cost are not capitalized for financial statement purposes, from the refunding of
capital debi which resulls in monetary savings to the City, but often extends the life of the debt beyond the
depreciable lives of the related capital assets and from other noncapitalized financing costs related to the debt.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequentially, these assets are not available
for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liguidate these liabilities.

A large portion of the City’s net assets (87.3%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the City’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors. Internally imposed designations of resources are not presented as restricted
net assets.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is reporting a positive balance for the government as a whole. The
negative balance reported for business-type activities is offset by the positive balance reported for government
activities. The negative balance in business-type activities is a result of special obligation bonds outstanding at
year-end. These costs are intended to be covered by user charges, grants and lease receipts from third parties.

City of Boston’s Net Assets-Primary Government

(In thousands)
Goveremental Business-type
activities activities Totals
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Cumrent assets ‘ b 923,629 905,639 58,267 68,079 981,896 973,718
Capital assets 889,665 781,942 — — 889,665 781,942
Other assets 2,352 2,102 3,360 1,555 5,712 3,657
Due from others 33,679 19,250 104,860 129,103 138,548 148,353
Total assets 1,849,325 1,708,933 166,496 198,737 2,015,821 1,907,670
Noncurrent liabilities 842,966 1,014,892 236,256 251,150 1,079,222 1,266,042
Other lizbilities 683,057 437,311 12,822 7,104 695,879 444 415
Total liabilities 1,526,023 1,452,203 249,078 258,254 1,775,101 1,710,457
Invested in capital assets, net of related
debt (6,784) (92,711} — n (6,784) (92,711}
Restricted 210,077 266,999 — — 210,077 266,999
Unrestricted 120,009 82,442 (82,582) (59,5E7) 37427 22,925
Total net assets $ 323,302 256,730 (82,582) (59,517) 240,720 197,213
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City of Bostor Changes in Net Assets-Primary Government

(In thousands)
Governmental Business-type
activities activities Totals
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 127,367 130,854 12,877 38,695 140,244 169,549
Operating grants and contributions 503,696 541,589 — — 503,696 541,589
Capital grants and contributions 30,327 30,946 — — 30,327 30,946
(General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general
PUTpOSES 1,005,684 967,762 e — 1,005,684 967,762
Excises 95,157 109,503 23,348 5,079 118,505 114,582
Payment in leu of taxes 40,9110} 36,332 _— — 40,910 36,332
Grants and contributions not restricted 234,719 272,150 — — 234,719 272,150
Investment income 18,655 23,097 8,377 8,594 27,032 31,691
Miscellaneous 33,245 31,568 — 7,303 33,245 46,871
Total revenues 2,089,760 2,145,801 44,602 59,671 2,134,362 2,205,472
Program expenses:
General government 60,112 84,350 —_ — 60,112 84,350
Human services 32,357 11,730 — — 32,357 - 11,730
Public safety 420,108 429,216 — e 420,108 429,216
Public works 94316 82,891 — — 94,316 82,891
Property and development 03,265 112,787 — — 93,265 112,787
Parks and recreation 19,766 18,504 — — 19,766 18,504
Library 33,938 38,112 — — 33,938 38,112
Schools 791,540 768,428 — — 791,540 768,428
Public health programs 63,897 64,537 — — 63,897 64,537
County 100,745 109,340 — — 100,745 109,340
Judgments and ¢laims 2,880 2,724 — — 2,880 2,724
Retirement costs 74,720 82,034 — — 74,720 82,034
Other employee benefits 114,209 101,059 e e 114,209 101,059
State and district assessments 69,009 67,769 — — 69,009 67,769
Repairs and maintenance 21,929 — — — 21,929 —
Interest on long-term debt 48,397 38,514 — — 48,397 38,514
Canvention center — — 40,786 19,035 40,786 19,035
Hospital — — 8.881 8,232 8,881 8,232
Total program expenses 2,041,188 2,011,995 49,667 27,267 2,090,855 2,039,262
Excess (deficiency) before
special items and transfers 48,572 133,806 (5.065) 32,404 43,507 166,210
Transfers 18,000 — (18,000) —_— — —
Special Item — gain on sale of capital assets — 13,300 — — — 13,300
Change in net assets 66,572 147,106 {23,065) 32,404 43,507 179,510
Net assets — beginning 256,730 109,624 {59,517) (91,921) 197,213 17,703
Net assets — ending $ 323,302 256,730 (82,582) (59,517) 240,720 197,213
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Governmental Activities

The City's governmental activities net assets increased by $66.6 million from the prior year. The City’s two
largest sources of revenues were property and excise taxes of $1.10 billion and $768.7 million operating and
capital grants from the federal and state governments. Approximately 52.2% of the City’s total revenue came
from property and excise taxes, while 36,5% resulted from grants and contributions (including federal aid).
Charges for various goods and services, interest, payments in lieu of taxes and other miscellancous revenues
totaled $238.2 million. The City’s expenses cover a range of services. The largest expenses were for schools
{$791.5 million), public safety ($420.1 million), other employee benefits (8114.2 million), county ($100.7),
public works ($94.3 million), property and development ($93.3 million), and public health programs
($63.9 million). In 2003, governmental activities expenses exceeded program revenues (i.e., user charges,
operating grants and capital grants) by $1.38 billion. This shortfall was covered primarily through taxes
($1.10 billion) and nonspecific grants of ($234.7 miilion).

Business-Type Activities

Net assets from business-type activities fell by $23.1 million during fiscal 2003. This change in net assets
resulted primarily from expenses associated with the construction of the Convention Center exceeding grants
from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, offset by the excess of excise taxes generated by the enterprise fund
over the amount transferred to the general fund.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Individual Funds

This analysis is based on the Fund Financial Statements on pages 16 through 26.

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Fund Highlights:

Governmental Funds — Fund Balances — As of the close of fiscal year 2003, the City’s governmental funds
reported a combined ending fund balance of $701.4 million, an increase of $60.2 million from the prior year. Of
this total amount, $365.4 million represents the “unreserved and undesignated fund balances™ with
$331.5 million of this amount in the general fund.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financial requirements. In
particular, nnreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s financial position at the end
of the fiscal year,

General Fund — Fund Balance — The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. The City’s General
Fund — Fund Balance Policy states in part to maintain a GAAP undesignated fund balance in the general fund
that is 10%, or higher, of GAAP general fund operating expenditures for the fiscal year, The GAAP undesignated
fund balance at the end of fiscal year 2003 was $331.5 million, which represents approximately 19.1% of GAAP
general fund operating expenditures.
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However, because the City is required to follow the statutory basis of accounting rather than GAAP for
determining the amount of undesignated fund balance that can be appropriated, it is the statutory (not the GAAP)
fund balance that is used to calculated “free cash.” Free cash is the amount of statutory fund balance in the
general fund, as certified by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts” Department of Revenue, that is available for
appropriation and is generated when actual revenues, on a cash basis, exceeded budgeted amounts and
encumbrances are less than appropriations, or both.

The City of Boston has established the General Fund — Capital Fund, Fund Balance Policy to ensure that the
City maintains adequate levels of fund balance to mitigate current and future risks (i.e., revenue shortfalls and
unanticipated expenditures). The policy in full states that the City shall maintain 2 GAAP undesignated fund
balance in the general fund that is 10% or higher than the current fiscal year’s GAAP general fund operating
expenditures; and that the City shall only consider the certification of free cash (as defined by the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts” Department of Revenue) in years where the appropniation of free cash shall
not cause the fiscal year’s GAAP undesignated fund balance to go below 10% of the fiscal year’s GAAP general
fund expenditures while maintaining a Budgetary Undesignated Fund Balance between 5% and 10% of
Budgetary Operating Expenses.

The City shall only consider the appropriation of certified free cash to offset: (1) certain fixed costs such as
pension contributions and related postretirement health benefits; and/or (2) to fund extraordinary and
nonrecurring events as determined and certified by the City Auditor.

The general fund budgetary highlights include ending fiscal year 2003 with a $1.8 million doltar surplus. This
represents the City’s 18th consecutive year with a balanced budget. Changes to the original budget resulted in no
change to the overall budget. However, there were two supplemental appropriations in the amount of $592,055
from reserve for collective bargaining to the School Department. These appropriations were used for salary and
wage increases. These supplemental appropriations were funded from available revenue sources. During the year,
revenues exceeded budgetary estimates, thus eliminating the need to draw on existing fund balance.

Special Revenue — Fund Balance — The special revenue fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The fiscal year 2003 special revenue
fund balance is reported at $111.5 million, a $9.2 million decrease from fiscal year 2002,

Capital Projects Fund — Fund Balance — The capital projects fund accounts for financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust
funds. The fiscal year 2003 capital projects fund balance is $56.8 million. The $17.9 million decrease from fiscal
year 2002 is attributable to the timing of borrowing of General Obligation Bond sales.

Other Governmental Funds — Fund Balance — Other governmental funds account for assets held by the City in a
trustee capacity or as an agent. The fiscal year 2003 other governmental funds fund balance is $41.8 million, a
$2.0 million decrease from fiscal year 2002.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements for business-type activities. This information is presented on the same basis of accounting, but in
more detail.
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The City’s proprietary funds net assets for fiscal year 2003 arc a negative $82.6 million. As stated in the
discussion on the government-wide financial statements, the negative balance in the proprietary funds is a result
of the Convention Center special obhgation bonds and Hospital special obligation bonds outstanding at year-end.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2003, mcluded $1.88 billion
of cost and accumulated depreciation of $986.3 million, leaving a net book value of $889.7 million. This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure and construction in
progress. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and have value only to the City, such as
roads, bridges, streets, sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar items,

The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was about 13.8% in terms
of net book value. However, actual expenditures to purchase or construct capital assets were $145.9 million for
the year. Most of this amount was used to construct or reconstruct roads and bridges. Depreciation charges for
the year totaled $38.2 million. Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 8 of the
notes to the basic financial statements.

Long-term Debt

Debt Administration — The authority of the City to incur debt is governed by federal and state laws that restrict
the amounts and purposes for which a municipality can incur debt. At year-end, the City had $873.9 million in
General Obligation bonds principal outstanding — an increase of 5.4% over last year.

The key factors in this increase were the issuances of the $48.6 million 2002 Series B General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, $43.1 million 2002 Series C General Obligation Refunding Bonds and $162.0 million 2003
Series A General Obligation Bonds.

General obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the City, including the City’s power to levy
additional taxes to ensure repayment of the debt. Accordingly, all general obligation debt currently outstanding
has been approved by a vote of the City Council.

The long-term debt to be paid by the business-type activities decreased $15.4 million due to the issuance of
$127.8 million of Boston City Hospital Special Obligation Refunding Bonds, the proceeds of which were used to
repay a portion of outstanding revenue with a face amount of $141.1 million referring to the Boston City
Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds Series B.

Other Debt — The City’s general long-term notes and other obligations decreased by $8.0 million, or (2.2%),
during the current fiscal year. The key factors were reductions of compensated absences of $7.6 million,
judgments and claims of $1.8 million, and leases of $8.5 million offset by a net increase in BAN’s outstanding of
$9.0 million.
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Additional information on the City’s long-term debt obligations can be found m note 10 of the notes to the basic
financial statements.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Boston’s finances for all of the City
of Boston’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors. This financial report seeks to demonstrate the
City’s accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to: City of Boston, Auditing Department,
Boston City Hall, Room M-4, Boston, MA 02201.
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June 30, 2003

(In thousands)

Primary government

Governmental Business-type Component
activities activities Total units
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 673,744 841 674,585 161,131
Cash and investments held by trustees 45,869 56,286 102,155 4,901
Receivables, net;
Property taxes 15,163 — 15,163 —
Intergovernmental 163,297 1,140 104,437 —
Other 25,556 — 25,556 109,867
Other assets 2,352 3,360 5712 164,315
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 488,218 — 488,218 18,780
Depreciable, net 401,447 — 401,447 37.834
Internal balances 18,000 (18,000} e —
Due from BMC — — — 10,523
Due from components units 15,679 122,869 138,548 —
Total assets 1,849,325 166,496 2,015,821 507,351
Liabilities:
Warrants and accounts payable 53,145 — 53,145 113,550
Accrued liabilities - current:
Compensated absences 45,724 — 45,724 —_
Judgments and claims 13,973 — 13,973 —
Payroll and related costs 104,670 — 104,670 —
Deposits and other 72,791 3,127 75,918 2,907
Current portion of long-term debt and leases 95,489 9,695 105,184 3,695
Due to BMC — — — 36,178
Due to primary government — — — 138,548
Deferred revenue 47,861 — 47861 49,027
Noncurrent liabitities:
Bonds due in more than one year 793,444 236,256 1,029,700 18,383
Other due in more than one year 39,690 — 39,690 —
Leases payable 9,832 — 9,832 —
Bond anticipation notes payable 96,000 —_ 96,000 —
Other noncurrent liabilities 153,404 — 153,404 23,571
Total liabilities 1,526,023 249078 1,775,101 385,859
Net assets:
Investment in capital assets, net of
related debt (6,784) — (6,784) 32,959
Restricted for:
Capital projects 56,770 — 56,770 —_
Other purposes 153,307 — 153,307 59,096
Unrestricted 120,009 (82,582) 37427 29,437
Total net assets 5 323,302 {82,582) 240,720 121,492

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Statemeni of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2003

{In thousands)

FProgram revenues

Net (expense) revenue and
changes in net assets

Operating Capital Primary government
Charges for grants and grants and Governmental Busincss-type Component
Functions/programs Expenses services contributions contributions activities activities Total units
Primary povernment:
Govemmental activitics:
General government 2 60,112 12,679 17,930 — {29,503) — (29,503) —
Humar services 32,357 4 7438 — 24,917) — (24917 —
Public safety 420,108 89,480 25,282 — (305,346) — (305,346) -
Public works 94,316 4,196 430 13,095 (76.545) — (76,545)
Property and development 93,265 1,348 67,346 — {24,571) — (24.571) —
Parks and recreation 19,766 — 831 — (18,035) — (18,935) —
Library 33,938 351 4,273 — 29,314) — (29.314) —
Scheols 791,540 18,223 290,816 17,232 {465,269) — {465,269} —
Public health programs 63,897 — -— — (63,897) — (63,897)
County 100,745 — 89,302 (11,443) — (11,443) -
Judgments and claims 2,880 — — — {2,380) — (2,880) —
Retirement costs 74,720 1,086 — — (73.634) — (73,034) —
Other employee benefits 114,209 — - (114,209} - (114,209) -
State and district asscssiments 69,009 — — — (69,009} — {69,009) —
Repairs and maintenance 28929 — — — (21,929 — {21,929) —_
Interest on long-term debt 48,397 — — — (48,397) — {48,397)
Tetal governmental activities 2,041,188 127,367 503,696 30,327 {1,37%,798) — (1,379,798} —
Busingss-type activities;
Convention Center 40,786 — 12,877 — — (27,909) (27,900)
Hospital bonds 8,881 —— — — — {B,881) (3,881}
Total husingss-type activities 49,667 — 12,877 — — (36,790} (36,790} —
Total primary government § 2090855 127,367 516,573 30,327 {1,379.798) (36,790) {1,416,588)
Component units:
Boston Public Health Conmission $ 116,016 — 120,524 — — — — 3,908
Boston Redevelopment Authority 36454 — 34,627 — — — —_— (1,827)
Trustees of the Public Library of the City of Boston 13,369 716 10,143 — — — — (2,508)
Economic Development and Industrial Corporation of Boston 33414 — 34,143 — — — — 729
Total component units 3 169,853 716 199,439 — — — — 302
Cieneral revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 1,005,684 — 1,005,684 —
Excises 95,157 23,348 118,505
Payments in lieu of taxes 40,910 — 40,910 —
Grants and contributions nat restricted 234,719 — 234,719 —
Investment income 18,655 2377 27,032 1,717
Miscellancous 33,245 — 33,245 1,071
Transfers 18,000 (18,000) —
Tolal general revenues and Lransfers 1,446,370 13,725 1,460,085 2,738
Change in net assets 66,572 (23,065 43,507 3,090
Net assets — beginning 256,730 (59.517) 197,213 {18,402
Net assets — ending 323,302 (82,582) 240,720 121,492

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Assets

Cash and investments
Cash and investments held by trusiees
Receivables, net:

Property taxes

Intergovernmental

Departmental and other

Total receivables

Due [rom other {unds
Due from component units

Total assets
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilitics:
Warrants and accounts payable
Accrued liabilities:
Compensated absences
Payroll and related costs
Deposits and other
Deferred rovenue
Due to other funds
Other liabilities

Total habilities

Fund balances {delicit):

Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Future appropriations

Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent years expenditurcs
Undcsignated
Undesignated, reported in permanent funds

Total fund balance
Total liabilities and fund balances

See uccompanying notes to basic financial statements.

CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

June 30, 2003
{In thousands)

Other Total
Special Capital governmental governmental
General revenue projects funds funds
$ 529,315 67,535 62,761 — 659,611
— — 3,788 42,081 45,869
41,175 — — — 41,175
79,528 83,769 — — 163,297
20,386 163 — 164 20,715
141,089 83,934 — 164 225,187
18,060 1,044 101 — 19,143
15,679 — — — 13,679
$ 704,083 152,513 60,650 42,245 965,491
$ 33,603 9,230 9,845 450 53,128
10,259 — — — 10,259
104,670 o — — 104,670
4,174 310,557 — — 35,731
57,952 — — - 57,952
1,765 — — — 1,765
306 214 35 — 555
212,729 41,001 9,880 450 264,060
20,787 49,019 84,184 176 154,166
-— — 42,875 — 42,875
139,028 — — — 139,028
331,539 62,493 (70,289) — 323,743
— — — 41,619 41,619
491,354 111,512 56,770 41,795 701,431
3 704,083 152,513 66,650 42,245 965,491
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2003
{In thousands)

Total fund balance — Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported m the funds. These assets consist of:
Land
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Adjust deferred revenues and receivables to record revenues on an accrual basis
Internal service funds are included in the government-wide statements
Bond issuance costs are capitalized in the government-wide statements

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:
General obligation bonds and notes
Capital leases
Bond issue premiums
Deferred bond gains/losses
Accrued interest on bonds
Compensated absences
Landfill
Judgments and claims
Tax abaternents

Net assets of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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701,431

14,466
16,697
984,820
142,349
243,891
473,751
(986,309)

889,665

(11,359)

7,930

2,112

(1,011,464)
(17,492)
(12,984)

7,485
(16,300)
(151,286)
(14,578)
(29,098)
(20,760)

(1,266,477)

323,302




CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —

Governmental Funds
Year ended June 34, 2003

{In thousands)

Other Total
Special Capital governmental governmental
General revenue projects funds funds
Revenues:
Real and personal property taxes g 1,053,945 — — £,053,945
Excises 94,133 — — — 94,133
Payments in lieu of taxes 40,910 — — — 40,910
Fines 59,187 1% — — 59,206
Investment income 8,951 479 — 60 9,450
Licenges and permits 30,217 57 - — 30,274
Drepartmental and other 62,373 13,170 — 4,136 79,679
Intergovernmental 444 751 311,347 13,095 — 769,193
Total revenues 1,794,467 325,072 13.095 4,196 2,136,830
Expenditures:
Current: _
General government 53,343 8,385 - 4,325 66,053
Human services 24,738 7.231 — —_ 31,969
Public safety 394,692 23,119 — — 417,811
Public works 56,819 186 — —_ 87,005
Property and development 29,260 63,851 — — 93,111
Parks and recreation 14,622 831 e — 15,453
Library 27,715 5,186 — — 32,901
Schools 654,958 131,383 — — 786,341
Public health programs 63,897 — — — 63,897
County 4,539 96,452 e —_ 100,991
Judgments and claims 2,880 —_ — — 2,880
Retirement costs 74,720 — —_ — 74,720
Other employee benefits 114,512 e — 114,512
State and district assessments 69,009 —— — 69,009
Capital outlays 2,971 — 164,891 — 167,862
Debt service 121,184 13,841 25,000 — 160,025
Total expenditures 1,739,859 350,465 139,891 4,325 2,284,540
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 54,608 (25,393) (176,796) (129) {147,710}
Other financing sources (uses):
Long-term debt and capital leases issued — 4,094 304,440 — 308,534
Payments to eserow agent to refund debt — — (130,740} — (130,740)
Premiums on long-term debt issued — 12,100 — — 12,100
Transfers in 34,637 — — 34,637
Transfers out — — (£4,788) (1,849) (16,637)
Total other financing sources (uses) 34,637 16,194 158,912 (1,849) 207,894
Net change in fund balances 89,245 (9,199} (17,884) (1,978) 60,184
Fund balance ~ beginning 402,109 120,711 74,654 43,773 641,247
Fund batance - ending % 491,354 111,512 56,770 41,795 701431

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2003

Net change in fund balances — total governmental funds

Amounts reported for govertunental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated over their estimated useful
lives. Capital outlays ($145,934) exceeded depreciation expense ($38,211).

Tax revenues in the statement of activities that are not reported as revetues
in the governmental funds.

Proceeds of long-term debt ($308,534) increase long-term liabilities in the
statement of net assets, but are included in the operating statement of the
governmental funds. Repayment of bond principal ($269,843) is an expenditure
in the governmental funds, but reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of
net assets. This is the amount by which proceeds exceeded repayments.

Bond premiums net ($11,776) increase the long-term liabilities in the statement of
net assets, but are included in the operating statement of the governmental
funds. Bond issuance costs net ($1,616) are expenditures in the governmental
funds, but are deferred assets in the statement of net assets. This is the
amount by which premiums exceeded issuance costs.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds. This amount represents the increase in liabilities for
judgments and claims ($6,648), compensated absences ($2,109) and interest
payable ($3,901) offset by a decrease in landfill liabilities ($293).

Net income from the internal service fund which is presented in the statement
of activities, but not in the governmental funds.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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60,184

107,723

(40,589)

(38,691)

(10,160)

(12,365)

470
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis
General Fund — Budget and Actual

Year ended June 30, 2003
(with comparative actual amounts for 2002)

(In thousands)

2003 Variance
Original Final over 2002
budget budget Actual (under) Actual
Revenues and other available funds:
Real and personal property
taxes, net % 995,453 995,453 996,030 577 926,336
Excises 103,006 103,006 118,405 15,399 112,304
Commaonwealth of Massachusetts 521,737 321,737 498,217 (23,520) 541,456
Departmental and other revenug 46,722 46,722 54,720 7,998 62,193
Fines 61,497 61,497 38,985 (2,512} 60,659
Payments in lieu of taxes 34,123 34,123 40,910 6,787 36,332
Investment income 10,750 10,750 8,552 (2,198) 14,301
Licenses and permits 25,218 25,218 30,146 4,928 29,651
Orther available funds 26,725 26,725 24,849 (1,876) 4,568
Total revenues and
other available funds 1,825,231 1,825,231 1,830,814 5,583 1,788,300
Expenditures:
General government 68,522 69,232 65,401 3,831 70,702
Human services 24972 25,829 24936 893 6,398
Public safety 404,730 403 916 408,849 (4,933) 405,150
Public works 82,542 82,542 86,599 (4,057) 74,833
Property and development 35,002 35,062 34,744 318 41,630
Parks and recreation 14,785 14,785 14,680 105 16,071
Library 28,008 28,008 27,726 282 28,813
Schools 650,026 650,618 650,600 18 639,710
Boston Public Health Commission 63,897 63,897 63,807 — 64,005
County 4,537 4,737 4,737 — 4,537
Judgments and claims 3,100 2,166 2,166 —_ 3,000
Other employee benefits 111,092 115,423 115,164 259 107,473
Retirement costs 139,325 139,325 139,325 — 135,710
State and district assessments 68,378 68,498 69,009 (511) 67,769
Debt requirements 126,255 121,193 121,184 a 115,332
Total expenditures 1,825,231 1,825,231 1,829,017 (3,786} 1,783,133
Excess of revenues and
other available funds
over expenditures S — — 1,797 1,797 5,167

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Net Assets — Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2003
(T thousands)

Enterprise funds

Hospital
Convention FEVERUE Internal
center bonds Total service
Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 8§41 — 841 14,133
Cash and investments held by trustees 35,471 20815 56,286 —
Receivables, net 1,140 — 1,140 279
Dug from component units —_ 122,869 122,869 —
Due from other funds — — — 620
Other assets 1,493 1,867 3,360 240
Total current assets 38,945 145,551 184,496 15,272
Total assets 38,945 143,551 184,496 15,272
Liabilities:
Current lLiabilities:
Warrants and accounts payable e s — 17
Accrued liabilities 935 2,192 3,127 7,325
Due to other funds 18,000 — 18,000 —
Current portion of long-term debt 2,310 7,383 9,695 —
Total current liabilities 21,245 9377 30,822 7,342
Noncurrent liabilities:
Special obligation bonds 112,480 — 112,480 —
Revenue bonds — 123,776 123,776 —
Total noncurrent liabilities 112,480 123,776 236,256 —
Total liabilities 133,725 133,353 267,078 7,342
Net assets:
Unrestricted (94,780) 12,198 (82,582) 7.930
Total net assets $ (94,780) 12,198 (82,582) 7.930

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Statemient of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Proprietary Funds

Operating revenues:
Contributions
Excise taxes — pledged for debt service
Departmental and other — pledged for
debt service

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Payments made on behalf of State
Health benefits

Total operating expenses
Operating (loss) income

Nonoperating revenue {expense):
Intergovernmental — state grants
Investment earnings — pledged for

debt service
Investment earnings — other
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenue (expense)
Income before transfers
Transfer to general fund
Change in net assets
Total net assets — beginning

Total net assets — ending

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Year ended June 30, 2003

(In thousands)
Enterprise funds
Hospital
Convention revenue Internal
center honds Total service

— — — 72,626
23,348 — 23,348 —
W - — 167
23,348 —_ 23,348 72,793
33,845 — 33,845 —
— — — 72,323
33,845 — 33,845 72,323
(10,497) — (10,497) 470
12,877 — 12,877 —
— 7,125 7,725 —

652 — 652 —
{6,941) {8,881) (15,822) —
6,588 (1,156) 5,432 —
(3,909 (1.156) (5,065) 470
(18,000} — (18,000) —
(21,909 (1,156) (23,063) 470
(72,871) 13,354 (59,517) 7,460
(94.780) 12,198 (82,582) 7,930
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Staternent of Cash Flows — Proprictary Fund Types
Year ended June 30, 2003

{In thousands)
Enterprise funds
Hospital
Convention revenue Internal
center bonds Total service
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from others b 23,348 — 23,348 72,498
Other cash received — — — 167
Cash paid to vendors (466) — (466) (70,584)
Cash payments on behalf of State (33.379) — (33,379 —
Net cash (used) provided in
operations (10,497} — (10,497) 2,081
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Grants received from state 14,337 — 14,337 —_
Interest paid on debt (6,213) {6,689) (12,902) -
Lease receipts e 6,234 6,234 —
Bond issue costs - (1,867) (1,867} —
Repayment of long-term debi {2,100y (9,934) (12,034) —
Net cash provided (used) by
noncapital financing activities 6,024 {12,256) (6,232) —
Cash flows from investing activitics:
Investment income 652 7,725 8,377 —
Net cash provided by investing
activities 652 7,725 8,377 -
{Decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents (3.821) (4,531) (8,352) 2,081
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 40,133 25,346 65,479 12,052
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year S 36,312 20815 57,127 14,133
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Fund Types
Year ended June 30, 2003
(Inn thousands)

Enterprise funds
Hospital
Convention revenue Internal
center bonds Total service
Reconciliation of operating income o cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) 3 (10,497 — (10,497} 470
Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided {used) by
operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable — - e (128)
Other assets s — — 1,366
Due (to) from other funds —_ — — 107
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities — — — 266
Net cash (used) provided by
2,081

operating activities 5 (10,497) — (10,497)

See accompanying niotes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiductary Funds

June 30, 2003
(In thousands}
Employee Private
retirement purpose Agency
plans trusts funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,795 75,168 2,802
Receivables:
Interest and dividends 16,783 e —
Securities sold 187,033 — —
Other 78,815 1,063 —
Total receivables 282,631 1,063 —
Due from other funds 14 — —
Investments, at fair value:
Money market 768,719 — —
MMDT 24,575 — —
Short-term investments 159,038 — —
Domestic equity securities 712,712 — —
Domestic debt securities 315,598 — —_
International equity 288,072 — —
International debt 105,414 — —
Real estate 221,683 o —
Venture capital funds 59,789 — —
Total investments 2,655,600 — —
Securities lending short-term collateral investment pool 190,801 — —
Other assets — 30 —
Total assets 3,133,841 76,261 2,802
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 10,687 2,055 —
Securities purchased 259,449 — —
Collateral held on securities lending 190,801 — —
Refunds payable and other — — 2,802
Total labilities 460,937 2,055 2,802
Net assets:
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes  $ 2,672.904 74,206

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets —

Fiduciary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2003
(In thousands)

Additions:

Contributions:
Employers
Employees
Donations and other

Total contributions

Investment earnings:

Net appreciation (depreciation) in the fair value of investments
Interest and dividends

Less investment expenses
Net investment (losses) earnings
Intergovernmental
Total (loss) additions

Deductions:
Benefits
Reimbursement to other systems
Refunds of contributions
Borrower rebates and fees
Administrative expenses

Total deductions
Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Employee Private
retirement purpose
plans trusts
156,214 —
99,713 —
— 817
255,927 817
(369,731) 18,907
75,610 472
(8,921) —
(303,042) 19,379
24,315 —
(22,800) 20,196
259,169 —
7,819 —
12,967 —
3,020 —
2,268 18,945
285,243 18,945
(308,043) 1,251
2,980,947 72,955
2,672,904 74,206




CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2003

{1} The Financial Reporting Entity

The accounting policies followed in preparing the accompanying basic financial staternents are as follows:

(@)

(d)

()

Primary Government

The City of Boston (the City), incorporated as a town in 1630 and as a city in 1822, now exists under
Chapter 486 of the Act of 1909 and Chapter 452 of the Acts of 1948 of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts (the Commonwealth) which, as amended, constitute the City’s Charter. The Mayor is
elected to a four-year term and serves as chief executive officer of the City. The Mayor has general
supervision of and control over the City’s boards, commissions, officers and departments. The
legislative body of the City is the City Council, which consists of thirteen elected members serving
two-year terms.

The accompanying basic financial statements present the City of Boston and its component units.
The component units discussed below are included in the City’s reporting entity because of the
significance of their operational or financial relationships with the City.

Blended Component Unit Disclosure

The following component unit has been presented as a blended component unit {included in the
primary government} because the component umt provides services almost exclusively to the
primary government:

State-Boston Retirement System (SBRS) — The SBRS is a defined benefit contributory
retirement system created under state statute. It is administered by a Retirement Board
comprised of five members: the City Auditor, who serves ex officio; two individuals elected by
participants m the system; a fourth member appointed by the Mayor and a fifth member
chosen by the other members. The SBRS provides pension benefits to retired City employees.

A complete set of financial statements for SBRS for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 can be
obtained through the City Auditor’s office, Room M-4, City Hall Plaza, Boston, Massachusetts
02201.

Discretely Presented Component Units Disclosure

These component units are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate
from the City but are included because the City is financially accountable for and is able to impose
its will on the organizations. Unless otherwise indicated, the notes to the basic financial statements
pertain only to the primary government because certain disclosures of the component units are not
sigmficant relative to the total component units and to the primary government. A description of the
component units, criteria for inclusion and their relationship with the City are as follows:

Boston Redevelopment Authority (BRA) — The BRA is a public bedy politic and corporate
constituting the City’s redevelopment authority and exercising the powers of a planning board
for the City. The BRA is governed by a five-member board, four of whom are appointed by
the Mayor. Its purpose is to provide planning support for major construction and
redevelopment activity in the City.
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(d)

CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2003

Econemic Development and Industrial Corporation of Bosten (EDIC) — The EDIC is a
body politic and corporate and an instrumentality of the Commonwealth. It is governed by the
same persons appointed as members of the BRA board. The EDIC has various powers to assist
industrial development projects in the City and together with the BRA assists the City with its
economic development function.

Boston Public Health Commission (PHC) — The PHC is a body politic and corporate and
public instrumentality of the Commonwealth, established by Chapter 147 of the Acts of 1995.
PHC is governed by a seven-member board, six of whom are appointed by the Mayor and
confinmed by the City Council, and one of whom is the chief executive officer of the Beston
Medical Center (BMC). The PHC is responsible for the implementation of public health
programs in the City.

Trustees of the Public Library of the City of Boston (TPL) — The TPL 15 a nonprofit
organization qualified as a tax-exempt entity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code. Trustees of TPL are appointed by the Mayor. The TPL was established to benefit the
public library system of the City.

The financial statements of the discretely presented component units are included for their respective
fiscal year-ends, which is on June 30, 2003,

Complete financial statements of these discretely presented component units can be obtained through
the City Auditor’s office, Room M-4, City Hall Plaza, Boston, Massachuseits 02201. In addition,
condensed financial statements for the discretely presented component units are included in note 17.

Related Organizations

The Mayor is also responsible for appointing members of the governing bodies of the Boston
Housing Authority, Boston Industrial Development Finance Authority and Boston Water and Sewer
Commission; however, the City’s accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond
making these appointments.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the City of Boston, Massachuseits, conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following is a summary of the more significant
policies followed by the City:

(a)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmeni-wide financial statements (i.e,, the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-tvpe activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary govermment is reported
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separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

The statement of activities demeonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
colurmms in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
Sfocus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurements focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are “susceptible to accrual” (i.e., both measurable and available.) Revenues not considered to
be available are recorded as deferred revenue.

The City applies the susceptible to accrual criteria to property taxes and intergovernmental revenues.
In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, there are essentiatly
two types of revenues. In one, resources must be expended on the specific purpose or project before
any amounts will be reimbursed to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the
amount of expenditures incurred. In the other, resources are virtually unrestricted and are usually
revocable by the grantor only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirernents. These
resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
are met. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which taxes have been levied,
provided they are collected within 60 days after year-end.
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Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures,
as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and judgments and claims, are recorded
only when payment is matare and due.

Proprietary Fund, Fiduciary Fund, and Compenent Unit Financial Statements

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Proprietary funds distinguish eperating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from the collection of revenue pledged to repay debt. The
principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are lease receipts and excise taxes. The
principal operating revenues of the City’s internal service funds are charges to other funds for health
insurance. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the interest,
administrative expenses, and vendor payments. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental funds — The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The special revenue fund accounts principally for the activities funded by federal and state
grant revenue sources and certain other revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes.

The capital activities fund accounts for bond proceeds and grant revenues used for the
acquisition or construction of the City capital facilities.

Proprietary funds — The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The convention center fund accounts for the City activities related to the financing for the
construction of a new state-owned convention center. Revenue debt issued in connection with
this fund is payable solely by specified local and state receipts.

The hospital revenue bond fund accounts for the activities related to the Boston City Hospital
Revenue Bonds., These Bonds are payable solely from the mortgage note payments received
from the Public Health Commission. These Bonds are repaid from a pledged revenue source
from PHC.

Fiducigry fiunds — Additionally, the City reports the following fiduciary fund types:

The private-purpose trust fund is vused to account for resources legally held in trust for the
benefit of individuals, private organizations, or other governments.
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The pension trust fund accounts principally for the activities of the State-Boston Employees
Retirement System, a blended component unit, which accumulates resources for pension
benefit payments to retired City employees.

The agency fund is used to report funds held by the City in a purely custodial capacity.

The City also uses an internal service fund to account for its self-insured health costs. Although the
fund is presented in a separate column in the accompanying financial statements, it is not considered
a major fund.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the combined statement of cash flows, investments with original maturities of three
months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

Basis of Investment Valuation

Investments are presented in the accompanying basic financial statements at fair value. Where
applicable, fair values are based on guotations from national securities exchanges, except for certain
investments of the State-Boston Retirement System which are described in notes 5 and 11. Further,
income from investments is recognized in the same fund as the related investments.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “dne to/from other funds™ (i.e., the cumrent portion of
interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans).
All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any
residual balances outstanding between the govenunental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance
reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

Uncollectible Tax and Other Receivables

All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollechibles. Amounts considered to be
uncollectible are based on the type and age of the related receivable.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
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activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
Cily as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $25.000 and an estimated useful life in
excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, is
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 30
Building improvements 20
Public domain infrastructure 30
System infrastructure 30
Machinery 10
Vehicles 3
Office equipment 3
Computer equipment 3

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted sick and vacation leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement, termination or
death, certain employees are compensated for unused sick and vacation leave (subject to certain
limitations) at their then current rates of pay. The portion of the liability related to unused sick and
vacation time that has matured or is due as of June 30, 2003 is related to the voluntary retirement
incentive and is recorded in the governmental fund financial staterments. The unamortized portion is
presented in the government-wide statement of net assets. The liability for vacation leave is based on
the amount earned but not used; for sick leave, it is based on the amount accumnulated at the balance
sheet date (vesting method). The liability for both amounts is calculated based on the pay or salary
rates in effect at the balance sheet date.

Long-Term Obligations and Related Costs

Premiums, discounts, and issue costs — In the government-wide financial statements, and
proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable povernmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premtums and discounts, as well as
issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance
costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
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as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Arbitrage Rebate — Rebatable arbitrage earnings are calculated for the City by third parties and
accounted for as a liability and a reduction of investment income in the general fund. At June 30,
2003, an accumulated arbitrage rebate liability of $1.9 million was recorded in the general fund.

Fund Egquity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject
to change.

Tax Abatement Refunds

Matured tax abatement refunds that are due and payable at June 30 have been recorded as a liability
in the general fund. Other refunds have been recorded in the government-wide statement of net
assets.

Landfill Postclosure Care Costs

State and federal regulations require the City to place a final cover on its Gardner Street landfill site
when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the
site for 30 years after closure. At June 30, 2003, 100% of the Gardner Street landfill site had been
used and had not accepted sclid waste for several years. The City has completed the covering of this
site in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The liability for postelosure care is estimated based on current cost, which is the amount that would
be paid if all equipment, facilities and services included in the estimate were acquired during the
current period. Such costs are recognized as expenditures in the general fund to the extent that they
are due or matured and are expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources. The
total liability is reported in the government-wide statement of net assets, Expenditures related to the
Gardner Street landfill site closure and postclosure care in fiscal 2003 were approximately $293,000.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally aceepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Short-Term debt

During fiscal year 2003, the City entered into a promissory note for $25,000,000 for a period of
twenty-seven days. The note had an interest rate of 1.5% and was used to pay off the February 1, 2001
Series A Bond anticipation note. The City’s short-term debt 15 as follows (in thousands):

Outstanding,
Interest beginning Qutstanding, Due within
rates of year Additions  Reductions end of year onte year
Promissory note 1.5% — 25,000 25,000 — —

Budgetary Data

The general fund is the only fund for which a budget is legally adopted. The budgets for all departments
included in the general fund of the City, except the School Department, are prepared under the direction of
the Mayor and City Council. The School Department budget is prepared under the direction of the Schoot
Committee.

Original and supplemental appropriations are submitted by the Mayor, approved by the City Council and
lapse at year-end unless encumbered. The legal level of control over appropriations is at the department
level. Amendments to the original budget must be approved by the City Council, except for a reallocation
of appropriations of up to $3 million which the Mayor may approve. Further, the City Auditor, with the
approval of the Mayor, may make transfers from any appropriation to any other appropriation for purposes
of eliminating deficits before closing the books for the fiscal year. After the close of the fiscal year, the
City Auditor may, with the approval of the Mayor, apply any income, taxes and funds not disposed of and
make transfers from any appropriation to any other appropriation for the purpose of closing the accounts
for the fiscal year. There were no supplemental appropriations, other than the aforementioned transfers, for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003,

The City must establish its property tax rate each vear so that the resulting property tax levy will comply
with the limits required by Proposition 2-1/2 (note 6). The tax levy must equal the sum of (a) the aggregate
of all annual appropriations for expenditures; plus (b) the reserve accounts described in the following
paragraph; plus (¢) provision for the prior fiscal years’ deficits, if any; less (d) the aggregate of all
nonproperty tax revenues projected to be received by the City, including available funds, in amounts
certified or approved by the Commonwealth for tax rate purposes.

In accordance with the 1986 amendments to the Funding Loan Act of 1982, the City has established two
reserve funds. The first is a budget reserve fund which is required to be funded in stages to a final level of
2-1/2% of the prior year’s overall departmental appropriations, except the School Department, by the
beginning of fiscal 1990. It is available to be applied to extraordinary and unforeseen expenditures. The
second is a separate reserve fund of 1% to 2-1/2% of the current year appropriation of the School
Department to be applied to overexpenditures in that department.

The City’s general fund budget is prepared on a basis other than accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP). The “actual” results column in the statement of revenues and
expenditures — budgetary basis — general fund is presented on a “budgetary basis” to provide a meaningful

34 {Continued)




(%)

CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2003

comparison of actual results with the budget. The major differences between the budget and GAAP basis,
where applicable, are that:

(a) Revenues are recorded when cash is received except for real estate and personal property taxes are
recorded as revenue when levied {budget), as opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

(b) Encumbrances and continuing appropriations which are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures
(budget), as opposed to a reservation of fund balance (GAAP).

(c) Certain activities and transactions are presented in separate funds (GAAP), rather than as
components of the general fund (budget).

(d) Amounts raised for the prior years’ deficits and available funds from prior years’ surpluses are
recorded as revenue items (budget), but have no effect on GAAP revenues.

In addition, there are certam differences in classifications between revenues, expenditures and transfers.

The following reconciliation summarizes the differences between budgetary and GAAP basis accounting
principles for the year ended June 30, 2003 (in thousands);

Excess of
Other revenue and
financing other
sources financing
Revenue Expenditures {uses), net sources
As reported on a budgetary basis $ 1,830,814 1,829,017 — 1,797
Adjustments:
Revenues to modified accrual basis 56,323 - — 56,323
Expenditures, encumbrances and
accruals, net — (31,125) — 31,125
Reclassifications:
Parking meter revenue and
expenditures to a special
revenue fund (4,348) (4,348) — —
State-funded teachers’ retirement
costs {53,685) (53,685) — —
Capital project fund revenue {13,000y — 13,000 —
Convention Center fund revenue (18,000} _ 18,000 —
Trust fund revenue (1,849) — 1,849 —
Transfers (1,788) — 1,788 —
As reported on a GAAP basis 3 1,794,467 1,739,859 34 637 89,245

Deposits and Investments

State and local statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits and investments available to the
City. Deposits, including demand deposits, money markets and certificates of deposit in any one financial
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institution, may not exceed certain levels unless collateralized by the financial institution involved.
Investments may be made in unconditionally guaranteed U.S. Government obligations having maturities of
a year or less from the date of purchase, or through repurchase agreements with maturities of no greater
than 90 days in which the underlying securities consist of such obligations. Other allowable investments
include authorized bonds of all states, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper rated within the three
highest classifications established by rating agencies, and units in the Massachusetts Municipal Depository
Trust (MMDT). The Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts oversees the financial management
of the MMDT, a local investrnent pool for cities, towns and other state and local agencies within the
Commonwealth, The City’s fair value of its investment in the MMDT represents their value of the pool’s
shares.

The City’s pension and certain other trust funds have additional investment powers, most notably the
ability to invest in common stocks, corporate bonds and other specified investments.

(a) Deposits

The City categorized deposits according to the level of risk assumed. Category 1 includes deposits
which are fully insured or collateralized with securities held by the entity or its agent in the entity’s
name. Category 2 includes deposits that are collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution’s trust department or agent in the entity’s name. Category 3 includes those
deposits that are not collateralized. The City’s deposits at June 30, 2003 are as follows (in

thousands}:
Category Total bank  Carrying
1 2 3 balance amount
Total cash deposits 3 1,516 — 113,403 114,919 94,422

Outstanding checks largely account for the difference between the bank balance and the carrying
amount of deposits.
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The City and SBRS categorize investments according to the level of nisk assumed. Category 1
includes investments that are insured, registered or held by the entity or its agent in the entity’s
name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the counterparty’s trust
department or agent in the entity’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered
investments held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the entity’s name.
MMDT, other mutual funds, pooled funds, venture capital funds and real estate investments are not

categorized. The City’s investments are as follows (in thousands):

Primary government Category
June 30, 2003 2 3 Fair value
Categorized:
U.S. Government
obligations — 1,237 — 1,237
Debt securities — 16,869 — 16,869
Equity securities — 11,754 25,908 37,692
— 29,890 25,908 55,798
Not categorized:
Repurchase agreements 528,435
MMDT 139,548
Mutual funds 41,301
820,880
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SBRS — December 31, 2002 i Fair value
Categorized:
Investments:
Short-term investments $ 159,038 159,038
Domestic equity securities 692,311 692,311
Domestic debt securities 200,608 200,608
International equity 226,418 226,418
Intemational debt 105,414 105,414
Securities on loan with
noncash collateral:
Domestic debt securities 5,238 5,238
International equity 7,639 7,639
$ 1,396,666 1,396,666
Not categorized:
Securities on loan with
short-term collateral
nvestment pool (cash):
Domestic debt securities 109,752
Domestic equity securities 20,401
International equity 54,015
Securities lending short-term
collateral investment pool 190,801
Investments:
MMDT 24,575
Pooled funds 768,719
Real estate 221,683
Venture capital funds 59,789
2,846,401

The composition of the City’s bank deposits and investments fluctuates depending primarily on the
timing of real estate tax receipts, proceeds from borrowings, collection of state and federal aid and

capital outlays throughout the year.

Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are based on values assessed as of each January 1. By law, all taxable
property must be assessed at 100% of fair cash value. Also by law, property taxes must be levied at least
30 days prior to their due date. Once levied, these taxes are recorded as receivables, net of estimated
uncollectible balances. Property tax revenues have been recorded using the modified accrual basis of

accounting, described in note 2.
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The City bills and collects its property taxes on a quarterly basis following the January 1 assessment. The
due dates for those quarterly tax billings are August 1, November 1, February 1, and May 1. Property taxes
that remain unpaid after the respective due dates are subject to penalties and interest charges.

Based on the City’s experience, most property taxes are collected during the year in which they are
assessed. Liening of properties on which taxes remain unpaid occurs annually. On November 14, all
properties with unpaid fiscal 2001 property taxes were liened. The City ultimately has the right to foreclose
on all properties where the taxes remain unpaid.

A statewide property tax limitation known as “Proposition 2-1/2” limits the amount of increase in the
property tax levy in any fiscal year. Generally, Proposition 2-1/2 limits the total levy to an amount not
greater than 2-1/2% of the total assessed value of all taxable property within the City. Secondly, the tax
levy cannot increase by more than 2-1/2% of the prior year’s levy plus the taxes on property newly added
to the tax rolls. Certain provisions of Proposition 2-1/2 can be overridden by a City-wide referendum.

Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the government’s individual major funds, nonmajor funds and internal
service fund, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows (in thousands):

Other
Special non-major Internal
General revenue funds service Total
Recetvables:

Property taxes 3 41,175 — — — 41,175
Other taxes 141,188 — e — 141,188
Intergovernmental 85,292 83,769 — — 169,061
Other 37,962 165 164 279 38,570

Gross recetvables 305,617 §3,934 lo4 279 389,994
Less allowance for uncollectibles (164,528) — — — (164,528)

Net total receivables $ 141,089 83,934 164 279 225,466

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of
the current fiscal year, the various compenents of deferred revenue and uneamned revenue reported in the
governmental funds were as follows (in thousands):

Unavailable Unearned
Delinquent property taxes receivable (general fund) b 36,102 —
Due from component units — 15,361
Other — 6,489
Total deferred/unearned revenue for
governmental funds N 36,102 21,850
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(8) Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2003 was as follows (in thousands):

Primary Government

Beginning Ending
balance Increases Decreases balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land $ 14,466 — — 14,466
Construction in progress 401,295 141,866 692,409 473,752
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 415,761 141,866 69,409 488218
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements 15,507 1,190 — 16,697
Buildings and improvements 939,198 45,622 — 984,820
Furniture and equipment 117,192 25,157 — 142,349
Infrastructure 242 383 1,508 — 243,89]
Total capital assets :
being depreciated 1,314,280 73,477 — 1,387,757
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 3,191 3,807 — 6,998
Buildings and improvements 765,230 18,462 _— 783,742
Furniture and equipment 99,943 9,191 — 109,134
Infrastructure 79,685 6,751 — 86,436
Total accumulated
depreciation 948,099 38,211 o 986,310
Total capital assets
being depreciated, net 366,181 35,266 — 401,447
Governmental activities
capital assets, net 3 781,942 177,132 69,409 889,665
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government b3 8,911
Human services 492
Public safety 6,175
Public works, including depreciation of general infrastructure assets 8,722
Property and development 350
Parks and recreation 4,455
Library 1,037
Schools 7,915
County 154

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities b 38,211

{(9) Interfund Receivable and Payable Balances

Individual fund and discrete component unit receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2003, are as
follows (in thousands):

Interfund balances Receivable Payable

General $ 18,000 1,765
Special revenue 1,044 —
Capital projects 101 —
Convention Center — 13,000
Internal service 620 —

Balance at June 30, 2003 19,765 19,765
SBRS at December 31, 2002 14 —

Balances in accompanying basic financial
statements b 19,779 19,765
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The purpose of the internal balances is to fund cash flows due to timing differences between receipts and
disbursements (in thousands).

Discrete component unit balances Receivable Payable
Primary govermment:

General 3 15,679 —
Hospital revenue bond 122,869 —
138,548 —

Discretely presented component units:
TPL — 97
PHC — 138,451
— 138,548

Balances in accompanying basic financial
statements $ 138,548 138,548
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(10) Long-Term Obligations
(@) Governmental Activity Qbligations

Following is a summary of the governmental long-term obligations of the City as of June 30, 2003 (in thousands):

Qutstanding,
Interest beginning Outstanding, Due within
rates of year Additions Reductions end of year one year
Bonds and notes payable:
General obligation refunding bonds dated 2/1/03 2.25-5.0% b3 — 162,015 —— 162,015 6,865
Ceneral obligation refunding bonds dated 11/15/02 4.00%-5.0% — 43,070 —_ 43,070 14,270
General obligation refunding bonds dated 8/15/02 2.875-50% - 48,640 380 48,060 265
General obligation bonds dated 2/1/02 3.00-5.0% 100,000 — 6,090 93,910 6,090
General obligation refunding bonds dated 4/11/01 3.50-5.0% 52,025 — 500 51,525 4,215
General obligation bonds dated 2/1/01 4,25-5.0% 111,640 — 8,360 103,280 8,360
General obligation bonds dated 2/1/00 5.0-5.75% 100,320 — 46,325 53,995 9,840
General obligation bonds dated 10/15/98 3.25-5.0% 96,370 — 7710 89,160 7,710
General obligation refunding bonds dated 4/15/98 4.5-525% 56,810 — 1,385 55,425 4,610
Generat obligation bonds dated 1/15/98 4.5% 59,615 — 7,595 52,020 4,625
Generat obligation bonds dated 11/15/96 5.0% 54,000 — 13,700 40,300 5,400
General obligation bonds dated 10/15/95 5.0-5.25% 19,900 — 3,100 16,800 3,100
General obligation bonds dated 9/1/94 5.0-6.0% 19,210 — 4,530 14,680 4,780
General obligation refunding bonds dated 2/1/94 4.0-5.0% 55,555 — 3,920 49,633 5,800
General obligation bonds dated 9/1/93 4.0-4.875% 35,565 — 35,565 - —
General obligation refunding bonds dated 2/1/93 3.0-5.65% 60,760 — 60,760 — —
General nbligation bonds dated 2/15/92 4.75-6.5% 3,195 — 3,195 —_ —
General obligation refunding bonds dated 5/15/91 0.5%-6.0% 4,000 — 4,000 — —
Total governmental obligation bonds payable kS 829,463 253,725 200,315 873,875 85,930
Less:
Unamuortized boad premiums 12,984
Unamortized cxcess of reacquisition price over net carrying
amount of defeased boads (7.485)
Current portion of long-term debt (85.,930)

$ 793,444
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{b) Notes Payable and Other Long-Term Obligations
Following is a summary of the notes payable and other long-term obligations of the City as of June 30, 2003 (in thousands):

Outstanding,
Interest beginning Outstanding, Due within
rates of year Additions Reductions end of year one year
Moles payable:

MWPAT nole payable 425575% % 9,311 — 444 8,867 449
Notes payable — SEC 108 5.44-7.18% 30,968 4,094 2,340 32,722 1,450
Bond Anticipation Notes dated 2/1/02 3.5% 62,000 — — 62,000 —
Bond Anticipation Notes dated 2/1/01 4.0% 25,000 — 25,000 — —
Bonds Anticipation Notes dated 2/1/03 2.125% = 34,000 — 34,000 —
Total notes payable 127,279 38,094 27,784 137,589 1,899

Other {ong-term obligations:
Leases 26,036 16,715 25,259 17,492 7,660
Judgments and claims 32,450 19,585 21,419 30,616 6,648
Compensated absences, net 169,177 — 7,632 161,545 45,724
Landfil] postclosure care costs 14,871 — 293 14,578 —
Total other long-term obligations 242,534 36,300 54,613 224231 60,032
Total notes and other long-term obligation $ 369,813 74,394 82,387 361,820 61,931

The payment of liabilities for judgments and claims, compensated absences and landfill postclosure costs is primarily the responsibility of
the City’s general fund.
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Business Type Activity Obligations

Following is a summary of the business type long-term obligations of the City as of June 30, 2003 (in thousands):

Outstanding,
Interest beginning Outstanding, Due within
rates of year Additions Reductions end of year one year
Convention Center fusnd:
Special Obligation Bonds dated 4/1/02 4.0-5.25% $ 116,890 — 2,100 114,790 2,310
Hospital Band fund:
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Boston City Hospital,
Series B, dated 6/1/93 3.60-5.25% 141,095 — 141,095 — —
$pecial Obligation Refunding Bonds, Boston City
Tlospital, dated 8/1/02 2.00-5.00% — 127,800 — 127,800 7,385
Total business type obligations § 257,985 127,800 143,195 242,590 0,695
Less:
Unamortized bond premiums 3,871
Unamortized excess of reacquisition price over net carrying
amount of defeased bonds (510)
Current portion of long-term debt (9,693)
236,256
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General Obligation Bonds

The annual debt service requirements of the City’s general obligation governmental bonds outstanding as
of June 30, 2003, are as follows (in thousands):

Principal Interest Total
Year ending June 30:

2004 $ 85,930 39,923 125,853
2005 81,410 35,729 117,139
2006 68,950 32,197 101,147
2007 63,180 29,148 97,328
2008 62,470 26,193 88,663
2009-2013 240,285 90,633 330,918
2014-2018 186,125 38,257 224,382
2019-2023 80,525 8,721 89,246

$ 873,875 300,801 1,174,676

General obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The Commonwealth has
approved school construction assistance, subject to annual appropriation by the state legislature and reports
filed with the Commonwealth by the City, to partially provide resources for future principal and interest
requirements on general obligation school bonds of the City. As of June 30, 2003, such resources expected
to be provided to the City total approximately $200,405,118 from the Commonwealth.

On February 1, 2003, the City issued $162,015,000 of general obligation bonds and refunding bonds. The
bonds were issued for municipal purposes, to finance the acquisition price of the building located at 1010
Massachusetts Avenue and to permanently finance the City’s $25,000,000 bond anticipation notes, 2003
Series A. In addition, $29,470,000 of the proceeds of the bonds were issued to advance refund $33,375,000
worth of certain of the City’s general obligation bonds. Interest on the bonds is payable semiannually on
each February 1 and August 1, until maturity in fiscal 2023. The economic gain (the difference between the
present values of the debt service payments on old and new debt) obtained from this refunding was
$1,163,995.

On November 15, 2002, the City issued $43,070,000 of general obligation refunding bonds for the purpose
of current refunding of certain outstanding general obligation bonds of the City. The proceeds were used to
refund $45,095 of the City’s General Obligation bonds outstanding. Interest on the bonds is payable
semiannually each February 1 and August 1, until maturity in fiscal 2009. The economic gain (the
difference between the present values of the debt service payments on old and new debt) obtained from this
refunding was $2.546,974.

On August 15, 2002, the City issued $48,640 000 of general obligation refunding bonds to advance refund
certain outstanding general obligation bonds. The proceeds were used to refund $44,785,000 of certain
City General Obligation bonds. Interest on the bond is payable semiannually each February 1 and
August 1, until maturity in fiscal 2020. The economic gain (the difference between the present values of
the debt service payments on old and new debt) obtained from this refunding was $2,073,958,
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No Obligation Debt

The City has outstanding industrial, commercial and housing development bonds payable solely from
revenues of the respective enterprises that do not constitute an indebtedness of the City and are not a
charge against its general credit. This aggregate amount is immaterial to the financial statements.

The City is subject to a dual general debt limit: the normal debt limit and the double debt limit. Such limits
are equal to 2-1/2% and 5%, respectively, of the valuation of taxable property in the City as last equalized
by the State Department of Revenue. Debt may be authorized up to the normal debt limit without state
approval. Authorizations under the double debt limit, however, require the approval of the
Commonwealth’s Emergency Finance Board. Additionally, there are many categories of general obligation
debt which are exempt from the debt limit but are subject to other limitations.

As of June 30, 2003, the City may issue $766.7 million of additional general obligation debt under the debt
limit. General obligation debt of $388.3 million, subject to the debt limit, and $169.1 million, exempt from
the debt limit, is authorized but unissued as of June 30, 2003

Notes Payable and Other Long-Term Obligations

At June 30, 2003 the City had bond anticipation notes (BANs) and various other notes outstanding totaling
$137,589. The City has the intent and ability to refinance the BANs with bond proceeds upon maturity and
therefore these amounts are classified as long term in the accompanying statement of net assets.

The annual debt of the City’s notes payable as of June 30, 2003, is as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Year ending June 30:

2004 $ 1,899 4,529 6,428
2005 2,030 4,896 6,926
2006 98,221 4,277 102,498
2007 2,325 1,655 3,980
2008 3,829 1,533 5,362
2009-2013 14,821 5,565 20,386
2014-2018 11,422 2,377 13,799
2019-2023 3,042 508 3,550

$ 137,589 25,340 162,929

On February 1, 2003, the City issued $34,000,000 in BANs to fund various school projects. The City will
pay interest of approximately $2,167,500 through fiscal 2006. The City is expected to issue general
obligation bonds to refund the BANSs; accordingly, they have been classified as long-term obligations.

Omn February 1, 2003, general obligation bond anticipation notes were issued in the amount of $25,000,000
and matured on February 26, 2003. The interest rate of 1.50% was payable at date of maturity.

As of June 30, 2002, the City has a permanent loan agreement with the Massachusetts Water Pollution
Abatement Trust (MWPAT) for $13.4 miltion. The loan provides funding for the closure and postclosure
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care costs relating to the City’s Gardner Street Landfill. Proceeds are received on a reimbursement basis
from MWPAT as expenditures are incurred by the City.

Proprietary Fund Obligations

The annual debt service requirements of the City’s special obligation bonds and Boston City Hospital,
Series B, revenue bonds, outstanding as of June 30, 2003 are as follows (in thousands):

Principal Interest Total
Year ending June 30:

2004 p 9,695 10,795 20,490
2005 8,905 10,514 19,419
2006 9,220 10,188 19,408
2007 9,565 9,843 19,408
2008 9,920 9,451 19,371
2009-2013 56,295 40,488 96,783
2014-2018 69,510 26,895 96,405
2019-2023 40,155 12,161 52,316
2024-2028 29,325 3,755 33,080

$ 242 590 134,090 376,680

On August 1, 2002, the City issued special obligation bonds in the amount of $127,800,000 for the purpose
of refinancing Revenue Refunding Bonds, Boston City Hospital, Series B, dated June 1, 1993. Interest on
the note is payable semiannually on each February 1 and Aungust 1, until maturity in fiscal 2019. The
economic gain (the difference between the present values of the debt service payments on old and new
debt) obtained from this refunding was $11,492.111.

The revenue refunding bonds of the Boston City Hospital (BCH) do not constitute general obligations of
the City and the annual debt service of these bonds has been assumed by the Boston Public Health
Commission. The Boston Public Health Commission expects to meet its obligation on the bonds through
application of a portion of the rent payable to the Boston Public Health Commission by the Boston Medical
Center Corporation (BMC) for its lease of the former Boston City Hospital. Under certain circumstances,
including a default by BMC under the lease, City revenues may be required to satisfy the debt service
requirements on the Series B bonds.

The Boston Public Health Commission has assumed responsibility for paying to the City an amount equal
to current debt service on all outstanding general obligation bonds of the City issued for public health and
hospital purposes which amounted to $15.3 million at June 30, 2003.

Defeased Debt — Prior Year

The following prior year transactions met the requirements of an in-substance defeasance:

. On April 11, 2001, the City issued $52.0 million in general obligation refunding bonds to advance
refund $49.9 milkion of 1991, 1994, and 1995 Series Bonds.
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. On May 12, 1998, the City issued §77.9 million iﬁ general obligation bonds, dated April 15, 1998, of
which $62.9 million was used to advance refund $58.0 million of 1989, 1990, 1992 and 1994
Series Bonds.

. In August 2002, $127.8 million of bonds were issued to refund the Boston City Hospital, Series B
Bonds dated June 1, 1993.

The principal amount of debt refunded through in-substance defeasance transactions and still outstanding
at June 30, 2003 was approximately $243 million.

Lease Obligations

The City has entered into various capital lease agreements for equipment acquisition, Payments under these
agreements are subject to annual appropriation and, by statute, are not included in the City’s debt limit
calculations. Activity in capital lease agreements during fiscal year 2003 was as follows {in thousands):

Qutstanding,

beginning Outstanding,

Date of issuance of year Additions Reductions end of year
December 17, 1996 $ 60 — 60 —
November 10, 1997 166 — 166 —
June 25, 1998 1,441 — 1,441 —
August 25, 1998 2,258 — 2,258 —
March 18, 1999 083 — 683 —
October 1, 1999 3,109 — 3,109 —
January 25, 2000 2,641 —— 2,641 —
November 21, 2000 7,649 — 7,649 —
May 21, 2001 390 — 209 181
October 31, 2001 6,014 — 1,980 4,034
June 3, 2002 1,625 — 457 1,168
December 20, 2002 - 16,715 4,606 12,109
) 26,036 16,715 25,259 17,492

Assets acquired under capital leases are included in equipment under capital assets.
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Future minimum payments under capital leases and installment sales as of June 30, 2003 are as follows (in
thousands):

2004 $ 3,086
2005 5,373
2006 2,592
2007 1,863
2008 372
2009 52
Total minimum lease payments 18,338
Less amount representing interest (846)
Total minimum principal lease payments 17,492
Less current portion (7,660)
Long-term portion $ 9,832

The City's commitment under operating leases is not significant.

(11) Retirement Plans

(a)

Plan Description

The City contributes to the State-Boston Retirement System (the System), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The System provides retirement, disability and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries of the following government units:

(1) City of Boston

(2) Boston Redevelopment Authority
(3) Boston Housing Authority

(4) Boston Water & Sewer Commission
(5) Public Health Commission

(6)  Sheriff of Suffolk County

Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws (MGL) assigns authority to establish and amend
benefit provisions of the plan to the state legislature.

The System is administered by a five-person Board of Retirement consisting of the City Auditor who
serves as a member ex officio, two members who are elected by the participants, in or retired from
the service of the System, a fourth member appointed by the Mayor and a fifth member chosen by
the other members.

The City also participates in the Boston Retirement System (BRS) and made benefit payments of
approximately $7.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2003. The number of BRS plan participants
was frozen in 1946. The financial statements of BRS are combined with the System’s; however,
disclosures for BRS are not material and, thus, are not presented separately.,
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Basis of Accounting

The System’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions
1o the plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the
contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of each plan.

Investments of the Systemn are stated as follows:

{a) Bonds are stated at quoted market value.

(b} Equity securities are stated at quoted market value.

{¢) Real estate funds are stated at appraised value or partner’s account value, whichever is
more readily determinable.

(d) Venture capital funds are stated at contributed cost or fair market value, whichever is
more readily determinable.

(e} International investments are stated at quoted market value and are included in equities
and fixed income categories.

(f)  Cash is stated at carrying amount which is reconciled book balance.

Membership

Membership in the System consisted of the following at December 31, 2002, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 13,400
Terminated plan members entitled to but not receiving benefits 3,560
Active plan members 21,695

Total membership 38,655
Total number of participating employers 6
Contributions

Plan members are required to contribute to the System. Depending on their employment date, active
members must contribute a range of 5%-9% of their regular gross compensation. Members hired
after December 31, 1978 must contribute an additional 2% of regular compensation in excess of
$30,000. Participating employers are required to pay into the System their share of the remaining
system-wide actuarially determined contribution, which is apportioned among the employers based
on active covered payroll. The Commonwealth of Massachusetts {the Commonwealth) reimburses
the City for benefits paid to school teachers. The Commonwealth also reimbursed the System for a
portion of benefit payments for cost of living increases granted before July 1, 1998. The
contributions of plan members and the participating employers are governed by Chapter 32 of the
MGL. The City’s required and actual contributions to the System for the years ended June 30, 2003,
2002 and 2001 were $134 million, $130 million, and $127 mullion, or $86 million, $85 million, and
$88 mullion, net of teachers’ retirement, respectively.
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During the fall of 1997 the System’s Retirement Board, the City Council and the Mayor approved
the option for local funding of cost of living adjustments. As a result, a locally funded cost of living
adjustment of 3.0% on the first $12,000 of a retiree’s annunal payment was awarded in fiscal 2002
and fiscal 2001. These cost of living adjustments will be awarded by the Retirement Board each
year, except in years in which the Retirement Board determines that such an adjustment would
substantially impair the funding schedule.

Legally Required Reserve Accounts

The balances in the System’s legally required reserves (on the statutory basis of accounting) at
December 31, 2002 are as follows (in thousands}):

Description Amount Purpose

Annuity savings fund  § 1,030,848 Active members’ contribution balance

Annuity reserve fund 302,904 Retired members” contribution account

Military service credit 60 Members’ contribution account while on military
leave

Pension reserve fund 544253 Amounts appropriated to fund future retirement
benefits

Pension fund 794,812 Rernaining net assets

$ 2,672,877

All reserve accounts are funded at levels required by State statute.

Securities Lending

The Public Fmployment Retirement Admimistration Commission of Massachusetts (PERAC) has
issued supplemental regulations that permit the System to engage in securities lending transactions.
These transactions are conducted by the System’s custodian, which lends certain securities owned by
the System to other broker-dealers and banks pursuant to a form of loan agreement. The System and
the borrowers maintain the right to terminate all securities lending transactions on demand.

At the System’s direction, the custodian lends the System’s securities and receives cash (including
both United States and foreign currency), United States government securities, sovereign debt of
foreign countries, and irrevocable bank letters of credit as collateral. The custodian does not have the
ability to pledge or sell collateral unless the borrower defanlts. Borrowers are required to deliver
cash collateral in amounts equal to not less than 100% of the market value of the loaned securities.

The System does not impose any restrictions on the amount of securities lent on its behalf by the
custodian. There were no failures by any borrowers to return loaned securities or pay distributions
thereon, and there were no losses from a default of the borrowers or the custodian for the years ended
December 31, 2602 and 2001. The cash collateral received by the custodian on each loan was
invested, together with the cash collateral of other qualified tax-exempt plan lenders, in a collective
investment pool. The relationship between the average maturities of the investment pool and loans
was affected by the maturities of the loans made by other plans that invesied cash collateral in the
collective investment pool, which the System could not determine. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,
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the System had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts the System owed the
borrowers exceeded the amounts owed to the System. Borrower rebates and fees paid to the
custodian during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 were $3,020,000 and $8,445,000,

respectively.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the fair value of securities loaned by the System amounted to
$197,045,000 and $173,469,000, respectively, against which was held collateral of $204,232,000 and
$180,010,000, respectively, as follows (in thousands):

December 31

2002 2001
Short-term collateral investment pool b 190,801 174,424
Noncash cotlateral 13,431 5,586
Total $ 204,232 180,010

(g) Commitments

At December 31, 2002, the System had contractual commitments to provide $141,876,000 of
additional funding to venture capital funds.

Other Postemployment Benefit Disclosures

In addition to the pension benefits described in note 11, the City provides postemployment health care and
life insurance benefits, in accordance with state statute and City ordinance, to eligible retirees.
Approximately 12,600 retirees meet the eligibility requirements as put forth in Chapter 32B of
Massachusetts General Laws. The City pays 75% of Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Massachusetts (BC/BS)
premiums and 90% of HMO premiums for medical and hospitahzation incurred by retirees and their
dependents. The City also pays 75% of BC/BS Medicare preminms for each Medicare eligible retiree. The
City provides for 50% of the premiums for $5,000 of life insurance for each eligible retiree.

Expenditures of approximately $52.3 million for health care and life insurance benefits for retirees arc
accounted for on a pay-as-you-go basis in fiscal 2003.
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(13) Transfers

Transfers and their purposes during the year ended June 30, 2003 were as follows {in thousands):

Governmental Proprietary
funds fund
Other
governmental  Convention
General Capital funds center
Primary government:
Support for parks development $§ 1,849 — {1,849) —
Surplus property 13,000 (13,000) — —
Hotel/mote] taxes 18,000 — — (18,000)
Available funds 1,788 {(1,788) — —
3 34,637 (14,788) (1,849) (18,000)

{14) Excess of Expenditures over Budgets

(15)

The City had expenditures in excess of their budgeted amounts for the year ended June 30, 2003 in the

following categories (in thousands):

Public safety:
Fire Department
Public works:
Snow removal
Property and development:
Property management
State and district assessments

$ 6,832
5,434

196

511

$ 12,973

The excess expenditures reported above are allowed under the budgetary laws governing the City.

Public Health System

Effective July 1, 1996, the City’s Department of Health and Hospitals and Trustees of Health and
Hospitals, a component unit, were abolished. Substantially all their assets and liabilities, including title to
the City’s two hospitals, Boston City Hospital (BCH) and Boston Specialty and Rehabilitation Hospital
(BSRH), were transferred to and assumed by the Boston Public Health Commission (PHC).

Also effective July 1, 1996, the operations of BCH and BSRH were consolidated with the operations of the
Boston University Medical Center under the licensure and control of the Boston Medical Center

Corporation (BMC).

The PHC receives the majority of its funding from federal and state grants, lease agreements with BMC
and a City appropriation. During fiscal 2003, the City appropriated $63.9 million to the PHC. As described
below, the PHC uses the appropriation to pay debt service on certain general obligation bonds and base
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assistance grant payments to BMC. The remainder of the appropriation is used for administrative purposes
and to support the various public health programs run by the PHC. The City has budgeted $58.9 million for
the PHC for fiscal 2004.

Due from PHC/BMC

On July 1, 1996, the PHC assumed a liability of $149.8 million for a mortgage note (the Note) held by a
trustee and insured by the Federal Housing Authornity (FHA). The balance of the Note due to the City of
$129.1 million at June 30, 2002 was refinanced in August 2002. This refinancing resulted in a new note
payable to the City for $127.8 million. Payments made by the PHC to the trustee on this Note are used to
pay the outstanding balance of $122.9 million of the City’s Special Obligation Refunding Bonds dated
August 1, 2002. The PHC receives funding for these Note payments from the BMC under a lease
agreement whereby the BMC leases portions of the former BCH for an initial period of 50 years. Rental
payments received under this lease are equal to the debt service costs on the Note and on all City general
obligation bonds allocable to BCH. These general obligation bonds were issued by the City between
December 1967 and October 1995 and total $15.3 million at June 30, 2003. These bonds pertain to the
property and operations of the BCH Campus, South Block Campus, BSRH Campus, Emergency Medical
Services Operations and the Long Island Campus.

In addition, the PHC and BMC are also responsible for reimbursing the City for health insurance,
equipment fease payments, workers’ compensation and other miscellaneous expenses paid for by the City.

Payments to BMC

Under the terms of the consoclidation agreement, the PHC is obligated to pay BMC §1.0 million per year
for five (5) years, beginning on July 1, 1996, to subsidize the costs of consolidation. If after 5 years, total
consolidation costs total less than $10.0 million, the PHC is entitled to a rebate in an amount that will bring
the PHC’s share of these costs to 50%. The fiscal year 2001 payment to BMC represented the final
payment under the terms of the consolidation agreement, and it is expected BMC will provide
documentation of the conselidated costs in fulfillment of the consolidation agreement.

PHC is obligated to make future base assistance grant payments to BMC totaling $10.8 million each year
until the Note has been paid off (scheduled in 2019).

In addition, during fiscal 1997, the City made $20.0 million in contributions to a capital fund in support of
the Boston HealthNet health center members. The BMC is expected to provide $2.0 millicn in each of the
six (6) years following the consolidation in additional suppert to the Boston HealthNet health center
members.

Risk Management

The City is self insured for general liability, property and casualty (except for boiler and machinery losses
up to $2.5 million), worker injury, unemployment and certain employee health claims. The City’s
Corporation Counsel defends the City in any lawsuits that arise from the normal course of operations, with
exposure limited by a state tort cap under Chapter 258 of the Massachusetts General Laws. Except for
certain health care costs described below, judgments and claims are charged to the general fund.
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The City’s health insurance program, administered by the Health Insurance and Benefits Division, a
program within Human Resources, provides coverage to the City’s employees and retirees through a
number of Health Maintenance Organizations (HMO) and Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Massachusetts
(BC/BS). Costs to the City for the HMOs, of which 10% is paid by employess, are accounted for in the
general fund and are capped at a defined premium payment per employee.

BC/BS acts as a third-party agent for the City in the payment of the various claim plans used by the City.
Costs incurred for the operation of the BC/BS plans, of which 25% is paid by employees, are accounted for
in a separate health insurance internal service fund.

The City has implemented a comprehensive risk financing strategy that includes establishing a catastrophic
risk reserve, currently with a $6.8 million balance available for future losses. The City has also improved
systems for maximizing the receipt of federal disaster funds. On July 1, 2002, the City’s property mmsurance
policy went into effect ~ a one-year, all-risk catastrophic policy covering all City property assets up to
$30 million, after a $20 million retention. Any boiler and machinery-related property loss is additionally
insured, after a $50,0600 deductible, for up to $2.5 million.

The City has established a liability based on historical trends of previous years and attorney’s estimates of
pending matters and lawsuits in which the City is involved. Changes in the self-insurance liability for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 are as follows (in thousands):

Internal service fund

2003 2002
Health and life claims, beginning of year $ 7,051 10,000
Incurred claims 72,597 61,818
Payments of claims attributable to events of both the
current and prior fiscal years:
Health and life (72,323) {(64,767)
Health and life claims, end of year b 7.325 7,051

Government-wide statements

2003 2002
Judgments and claims, begmning of year b 32,450 22,450
Incurred ¢laims 19,585 36,041
Payments of claims attributable to events of both the current
and prior fiscal years:

Workers” compensation (14,898) (13,756)

Unemployment compensation {4,355) (2,285)

Court judgments (2,166) (10,000}
Judgments and claims, end of year h 30,616 32,450

The liabilities above have not been discounted to their present value. Incurred claims represent the total of
a provision for events of the current fiscal year and any change in the provision for events of the prior
fiscal years.
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There are numerous pending matters and lawsnits in which the City is involved. The City attorneys
estimate that the potential claims against the City not recorded in the accompanying basic financial
statements resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the basic financial statements.

{(17) Discretely Presented Component Units

The following presents condensed financial statements for each of the discretely presented component

units:
Condenscd Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2003
{In thousands)
PHC BRA TPL EDIC Total
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 56,201 39,859 51,489 13,382 161,131
Cash and investments held by

trustee e 1,082 — 3,819 4,901
Receivables, net;

Other 7,697 81,183 1,693 19,294 109,867
Other assets 125,503 34,079 3,501 1,232 164,315
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 13,734 3,476 150 1,420 18,780

Depreciable 8,843 1,597 1,193 26,201 37,834
Due from BMC 10,523 — e — 10,523

Total assets 3 222,501 161,276 38,026 65,548 507,351
Liabilities:
Warrants and accounts payable §$ 10,163 94,661 3,545 5,181 113,550
Accrued habilities:

Other 387 — 371 2,149 2,907
Due to BMC 36,178 — — — 36,178
Due to primary government 138,431 — 97 — 138,548
Deferred revenue 4,573 35,439 — 9,015 49,027
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year — — — 3,695 3,695

Due in more than one year — 1,950 — 16,433 18,383

Other 3,108 19,424 — 1,039 23,571

Total liabilitics $ 192,860 151,474 4,013 37,512 385,859
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net

of related debt 5 17,303 3,598 1,344 10,714 32,959
Restricted — 1,082 47,631 10,383 59,096
Unrestricted 12,338 5,122 5,038 6,939 29,437

Total net assets b 29,641 9,802 54,013 28,036 121,492
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2003

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Year ended June 30, 2003

(In thousands)
PHC BRA TPL EDIC Total
Operating revenues $ 56,627 34,627 16,861 34,143 136,258
City appropriation 63,897 — — — 63,897
Total revenues 120,524 34,627 10,861 34,143 200,155
Operating expenses 97,175 35,702 13,369 32,527 178,773
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenses 23,349 {1,075} (2,508} 1,616 21,382
Nonoperating revenue 319 752 e — 1,671
Nonoperating expenses (12,000} (752) — — (12,752)
Interest expense (7,441} — — (887) (8,328)
Interest income 494 115 35 1,073 1,717
Net change in net assets 4,721 (960) (2,473) 1,802 3,090
Net assets, beginning of year 24,920 10,762 56,486 26,234 118,402
Net assets, end of year b 29,641 9,802 54,013 28,036 121,492
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Schedule I
CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
State-Boston Retirement System

Required Supplementary Information
(Unaudited)

{Dollar amounts in thousands)

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial Actuartal accrued Unfunded Funded percentage of
valuation value of liability AAL (UAAL) ratio Covered covered payroll
date assets (a) {AAL) (b) (h-a) {a/b) payroll (c) {{b-a)/'c}
0L/01/03 $ 3,204,893 5,121,319 1,916,426 62.6% b 1,099,779 174.3%
01/01/02 3,376,000 4,861,000 1,485,000 6%.5% 1,057,000 140.5%
01/01/01 3,212,000 4,257,000 1,045,000 75.5% 990,000 105.6%

Schedule of Employers’ Contributions

Annual
required Percentage
contribution contributed
Year ended December 31:
2002 b 152,882 100%
2001 146,882 100
2000 145,541 100
Notes to Schedules
Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:
Valuation date January 1, 2003
Actuarial cost method Individual entry age normal
Amortization method Payment increase at 4.5% per year
Remaining amortization period 21 years from July 1, 2002
Asset valuation method Five-year smoothing of investment returns

greater (less) than expected
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 8.0%
Projected salary increases 5.0%
Inflation rate 5.0%
Cost-of-living adjustments 3.0% on first $12,000 of retirement income
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

GENERAL FUND

The general fund is the operating fund of the City. Tt is used to account for all revenues, expenditures
and other financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds.
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit A-1

GENERAL FUND
Comparative Balance Sheets
June 30, 2003 and 2002
(in thousands}

2003 2002
ASSETS
Cash and INVESLINENTS.......cooiviiiiieiieieiesiersessessierassierrraseemeen s g 529,315 482 419
Cash and investments held by trustee...........ooceeveneviniciieen s, - 16,008
Receivables:
ProPerty TAXES. ....ooi et e s e 41,175 37,555
Motor vehicle / boat eXCISE ... 58,263 56,456
Intergovernmental .. ..ot 79,528 78,215
Departmental and other.........cccieieieiieinie e 43,726 34,849
Tax title and POSSESSION. ... e 82,925 86,241
Total receivables. ..o v er e 305,617 293,316
Allowance:
Tax title and POSSESFION. ..o e e (82,925} {86,241}
Motor vehicle / boat XCiSe. ..o ceresecceevers e (58,263) {36,456}
L0411 (23,340) {23,233)
Total allOWanCes........oover v rreeic e e cme e ce e (164,528) (165,930)
Net Receivable ... ereeree e rerarrrara s e s 141,089 127,386
Due from other funds.. ... e 18,000 .
Due from component UNs...........ccoocvirirr e 15,679 19,250
TOLAL BSSELS. . vvvireverereerireesretirererssbrnesesrmrnrssermreeeeernnesenan s 704,083 645,063
LIABILITIES
Warrants and accounts pavable..........coocooiineiicciee, S 33,603 41,940
Accrued habilities:
Tax abatement refunds...........cccooeieeiiccee e - 25,022
Judgments and claims............coco i - 10,000
Compensated abSences..........o.ooeiveriev it eaeiieenes . 10,259 20,000
Payroll and related COStS.......oovieeeiiee e 104,570 81,454
L1 = S 4,174 5,045
Due 1o other fUndS. ..ot s e 1,765 727
Due to COMPONENE LNILS..c...vveeeeeieeieeceeseesimeeieereeseesimermeaeereee e - 108
Deferred reVenue. ... 57,952 38,237
Matured interest and bonds payable...........ocoooiviiiiiinie. 306 421
Total liabilities. .......ccooviieieei e e e 212,729 242,954
FUND BALANCE
Reserved for:
Bneumbrancees. ... 20,787 20,262
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent year expenditures...........cccc...... 135,028 36,000
Undesignated. ... 331,539 345,847
Total fund balance......cooooveeiieee e 491,354 402,109
Total liabilities and fund balance..............c..cccooviiiiiiiinins $ 704,083 645,063
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit A-2

GENERAL FUND
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Years Ended June 38, 2003 and 2002
(in thousands)

2003 2002

REVENUES:

Local:

Real and personal property taxes. ... eveeieeremeeeeersceme s $ 1,053945 § 990,848
EXCISES v e . 94,133 1HE,114
Payments in lieu of taxes............ . 40,910 36,332
[N VST ICOINIE. coviove ettt sr e rsb saas s e s sasssass st e basasan s s 8,951 [4,596
Licenses and permits......cocooeo..... 30,217 33,325
Departmental and other revenue... 62,373 62,200
Total 10Cal TEVEIUES. ....ooovevieiiee e rnem e semee 1,349,716 1,309,016

Intergovernmental:
IntergovermmMENtal ... ..o e e 444,751 492,299
Total intergovernmental teVEIUES. ..o v 444751 492 299

Total PeVEIIUES. ..o s 1,794,467 1,801,315

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government.... 53,343 77,019
Human services........... 24738 6,434
Public safety..... 394,652 405,844
Public WorkS.....oooeee e e 86,819 74,651
Property and development......... . 29,260 48,774
Parks and reCreation.. ... seesse s ersnsnaes 14,622 16,230
SCRO0IS et e emeen: 654,958 627,653
Public Health Programs.............. . 63,897 64,537
COUDEY oottt e s s eoeaemat ct et nas st £ anas s s enebannanaes 4,539 4,537
Judgments and claims.............cco.o.ooriviini e e 2,880 2,724
RELTEMENE COSS......urticevreecrseeesrrnrrnrmemmerresesssensrmssesssrersnsssensessessenens 74,720 82,034
Other employes benefiis......coooceeveeeeeee e e 114,512 107,701
State and district assessments... 69,009 67,769
Capital OUIIAYS. ...ccco e 2,971 5177
Debt service.............. . 121,184 115,366
Total expenditures................. . 1,739 859 1,735,145
BlCOE s ctemccecemeeceieea e s vevreereerese e st e se s s et et en et er et e e e et et ea e ne 54,608 66,170

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in oo e 34,637 1,778
Total other financing (WSES) SOUICES. ..o cveveeviriieceec e 34,637 1,778

Net change in fund balances...........cococooiiiiii i 89,245 67948

Fund balance, beginning of year, as previously reported.................c. 402,109 266,460
Cumulative change in accounting principle.....o.ccoooevininiiicnieninceseinen - 67,701

Fund balance, beginning of year...... . Cerrer e 402,109 334,161

Fund balance, end of Year......cvereervreernserrsrr s areee s 5 491354 $ 402,109
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Fxhibit A-3
GENERAL FUND
Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2003
(with comparative actual amounts for 2002)
(in thousands)
2003
Yariance
Original Final Favorable 2002
Classification Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable} Actual 9
-t
L
PROPERTY TAXES O
-
Real and Personal Property TaXes....c..cocovemeecrenenorisenennnns 3 895,453 § 095453 § 905,030 % 577 % 926,336 g
Revenue class total 905,453 905,453 996,030 577 926,336 g’._
]
MOTOR YEHICLE EXCISE =)
£ =
Motor Vehicle Excise - CUTrent .......coovcvveonrenivnrenmeneemnnnnens 38,000 38,000 27,056 (10,944) 25,162 [«
Motor Vehicle Excise - Prior Years........cooceevveeeoieevevveemnens - - 18,520 18,520 17,602 g
Boat Excisc - Current and Prior Years.....oovv e v 5] 6 35 29 12 8
Revenue class total 38,006 38,006 45,611 7,605 42,776 -
c
OTHER EXCISE TAXES g
=
TTotel / Mote! ROOM EXCIS&. v 20,000 20,000 18,000 (2,000 20,976 s
Aidrcraft Fuel Excise............ 13,600 13,600 18,839 5,239 16,221
Condominium Cony. Excise...... 400 400 675 275 672
Urban Redevelopment Ch.121A ..o 31,000 31,0600 35,280 4,280 31,659
Revenue class total 635,000 65,000 72,794 7,794 69,528
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
State Owned Lands......oocooovieeeicciieeecee e 213 213 213 - 998
Exemption « ElIderly. ... e 494 494 880 3186 -
Exemption - QThET. oo 477 477 466 {11} 531
Exemption - Blind..ooooooovenieeie e 29 29 - {29} -
OBy et et e e e 63,492 63,492 57,550 (5,936} 63,492
Highways - Local Add........ooviiciirn e csnerennens - - - - 209
Veterans Services - Local Al e 1,153 1,153 1,210 57 844
Pensions - Retired Teachers......c.oovevvvoeeee v 47,600 47,600 53,728 6,128 45,341
(continued)
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Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

Classification

AdAIIONA] ASSTTANCE . .1vevevrrrerrrieeceesenarrerservaresrreresessnnesssrrseraonas
Police Career Incentive....
Local Sharc of Racing Taxes..
School Construction - State....
Charter School Reimbursement.....o.vievvvrerivorsrismmsmsenorimsinn
Chapter 70 EAucation A, vreecrerncnenniersrenr s ereerien.
School Transporation Programs.........ccovvicivcernsimncesinne
Tuition For State Wards. ..o icvvcevveeerirmresiniesinsessemesevenes

Revenue ctass total

DEPARTMENTAL & OTHER REVENUE

Penalties & Interest - Property Taxes........coccooee
Penalties & Interest - Motor Vehicle. ..o
Penalties & Interest - Tax Title......o.ooooieei e
Penalties & Interest - Street ASSESSIMENLS. cvvvveriviirvsrrcvninnrins
Unapportioned Assessnicnts.................

Streets Paid in Advance.................
Unapportioned Street Assessments
18D - Miscellaneous Charges..
Purchasing Services.............
Registry Division Fees.
City Record Publications.

Sale of EQUIPMENL. ..o
Election Fees....ocmviiicic it s

Exhibit A-3 (continued)

GENERAL FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(in thousands)

{with comparative actual amounts for 2002)

2003
Variance
Original Final Favorable 2002
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorahle) Actual
193,190 193,190 175,126 (18,064) 206,638
7,516 7,516 7,342 (174) 6,460
483 483 478 (5) 489
17,233 17,233 17,233 - 17,129
- - - - ¥,249
169,995 169,995 173,336 3,541 179,100
19,862 19,862 10,449 (9,413) 10,357
- - - - 1,619
521,737 521,737 498,217 {23,520) 541,456
1,500 1,500 2,076 576 1,672
2,850 2,850 2,938 88 2,852
4,000 4,000 4,152 152 1,545
- - - - 1
10 10 24 14 6
1 1 - () -
- . 1 i -
10 10 5 5 -
18 18 39 21 8
1,000 1,000 976 (249 1,008
12 12 5 {7) 7
30 30 27 (3) 26
800 800 1,164 364 881
750 750 786 36 777
33 35 20 (15} 24
115 115 119 4 390

{continued)
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Exhibit A-3 (continued)

GENERAL FUND

Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

Year Ended Junc 30, 2003

{with comparative actual amounts for 2002)

(in thousands)

2003

Original Final
Classification Budget Budget
Muni Medicaid Reimbursement.......cove e, 14,000 14,000
City Council FEes. .. senessns 1 l
Passport Execution Fees......c.co...o. 37 37
Environment FEes.......cvvmvimn 40 40
Police Services.....ovvvreceniens 480 480
Police Fitness & Wellness Fees.. 20 20
Fire Services....coooivmeieeieenee. 3,000 3,000
Fire Depariment-Misc.. 15 15
Parking Facilities.......c..coooorieiircens 1,800 1,800
Street, Sidewalk and Curb Repairs.....ccoooe e cocnvceinivennn, 2,500 2,500
Demolition, of Abandoned Structures... 25 25
Property Mgmit - Building Renis......oooocoii e, - -
C/H Coffee Shop 8th FICOr. ..o 5 5
C/H WalKer ASSOCIATES. vvevreeeeeereveeereemmscemeaeeesesnreeeseasasssasenns 3 3
New Chardon St C. O, Mo aereiresneeenne 100 100
RLC T T RO 29 29
Greetings from BOSION. ... 19 10
International NEWS. ... s 22 22
Brearley Collection. ..o 19 19
BOStON CTEaIMETY.... o et ittt s 19 19
Heritage Shop.....ccoocree s 35 35
Red Barn Coftee HOUSC. .. vvverere e eeeemeses e e 32 32
Stamp of Approval......... 9 9
Out of Left Field... 33 33
Local Colot Inc........ 33 33
DND Other ReVENUE...c.cooiiimeeie s oo 50 50
Special Events - Faneuit Hall. ..o 55 55
Special Evenls - City Hall.........ocoovimvrneiiciieiescecen 25 25
Utility Reimbursement........ovceeveoncvmrcnniimnesimeeemecseeerescncene 15 15

Actual

17,620
1

57

47
750
20
2,770

1,848
2,721
24
270

101
29
10
22
17
19
19
35
32

33
38
39
80
2
48

Variance
Favorahle

(Unfavorable)

3,620

20

2002
Actual

16,571
2

37

51
476
21
3,254
16
1,988
2,561
61

3

6

3

98
29

10

22

17

19

19

35

32

9

33

38
108
14

43
30

(continued)
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Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgelary Basis)

Classification

Miscellaneous Property Management..........ccoooevecroiinmccinenene
St.Furniture Program Fixed Fees....
St.Fumiture Program Adm Fees,
Misc - Parks.......
Veterans Services.........

Fiber Optics Access Fecs...
Public Works - Other Charges.......
Tuftion and Transportation - Schools. ...
Miscellaneous Receipts - Schools .
LADEArY FES ..ottt et e e
Registry of Deeds FEes. v,
ISD - Board of Apeals Feas. ...
COBraSElfPaY..c.eov et st s
Telephone Commissions = Real Property...ov i
INSUTANCE PIOCERUS.... oot saresi s es s
City Workers' Comp. Reimbursement........cvverinnisiionnn.
MisCellaneous Law.....co.oceoiccviiinrecn e RPN
Affirmative Recovery Uit
Special Prosecutors OIMIce.....oooiiciiiiiisis
Fringe Reimbursements....ccorreminnmim s
Pensions and ANNUIEES.......co.ooe e
Indirect Costs Reimbursement...
Private Detail Payroll...oovivenin
Miscellaneous Recovered Revenues..
AR Tellers Adjustment Account....
Prior Year Reimbursements. ...
Other General ServiCes.....covriiereniinnie e,
Miscellaneous Refunds..........cooooeiciicecec e
Miscellaneous Collections.......coocivicinenne e
Child Support ReimburSement. ...,

Exhibit A-3 (continued)

GENERAL FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(in thousands)

{with comparative actual amounts for 2002)

2003

Original
Budget

500

500
300
350
550

10
i85

800

Final
Budget

300

500
300
350
550

10
185

800
25
66

700
10

2,250
1,850

2,250
20

12
35

Actual

500
94

522
562
588
15
351

i
1,136
30

1
1,317
1,206
11

an

1,086
1,850

(1,098)

45
4,173
3

3

233
49

Variance
Favorable

[(Unfavorable)

2

¢
(496)
222
12
38
5
166
()
136
5
1
1,251
m
506
6
(21)
(1,164)
(1,098)
45
1,923
(15)
221
14

2002
Actual

500

650
290
562
689
18
101

3

951
23
184
4,006
30
1,359
44
128
2,197
1,257
153

1

7,651

53

204

223

49
(continued)
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Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

Miscellaneous ~ TreasuIY. s
Police Detail AGMIn. FCC..vimiminienieisiriimissensnninernens
Property Mgmt - Detail Admin Fees ..o
Fire - Administrative Fees........cooovn .
Suffolk County 10% Admin FEe.......ovvemeeee e

FINES

Parking FINeS.......coooe it ssissssis s saens
Municipal Criminal Courto..oammimimmmmnm e
Bicyele Fines - Muni Criminal ..o i innnrnessconenes
Municipal Civil COUMt......oooci s
East Boston DISEECL COUTL....oiiiieereciee e veveesseaeressenrcesaens
Brighton DHSIHCE COUMt.. oo
Charlestown District Court.. ... cviniicsini s
Dorchiester DSt COUt..voiimmioien i
Roxbury District Court.,..oveiciei e
South Boston DHSIct COuTt.. oo
West Roxbury District Coulle.. i
18D - Fines
ISD - Board of Appeals..
Code ERforcemetite. v iierireesinnesrirreeereas .

Revenue class total

Exhibit A-3 (continued)

GENERAL FUND

Year Ended June 36, 2003

(in thousands)

(with comparative actual amounts for 2002)

2003
Variance
Original Final Favorable 2002
Budyget Budyget Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
50 50 490 440 £,442
2,200 2,200 2,195 (5 2,256
7 7 9 2 7
275 275 319 44 263
2 2 - (2) 2
46,722 46,722 54,721 7,999 62,193
57,650 57,650 55,327 (2,323} 56,524
10 10 14 4 12
1 1 2 1 4
3,200 3,200 3,043 (157 3,449
25 25 21 {4) 32
15 15 15 - 12
2 2 i ) I
12 12 12 - 13
6 6 5 ()] 8
15 15 20 5 14
6 6 8 2 8
65 65 27 (38) 77
- - - - 1
490 490 490 - 504
61,497 61,497 58,985 (2,512) 60,639

(continued}
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Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgelary Basis)

Classification
PAYMENTS IN L1IEU OF TAXES

Mass Port AUthOTIEY...oocoie e
Boston Houging AUthority.....c.coeveniiniinr e
Marriott Custom House Tower......coovmeiniiennnnn
St. Joseph Communily INC..ovvicinni e
Tenants Development Corp e,
Viviendas Associates............
East Boston Comm. ASSOCIAES....innnninsenes
Westland Avenue Associates.
ETC Development COrp......oo oo ceeeesesessssressasens
Commonwealth Flats Develop. East LP..
Wentworth InSHEUTE. .o cv e e
EMErson.. ...
Spauiding Rehabilitation Hospital......oocoovrvnimeieiccinien
Beth Isracl Hospital........occoooviceiicces

Massachusetts Mental Health Program.........cooinieienniins
Bay Cove Human Services......co it
DIOMICIHZ oo s
Noble SChol .
DaNA PO .ottt e b
Mass College of Pharmacy........oconiinimanmmnmns
Metro Health Foundation............
North End Corrm Health Center..
New England School of Law........
Brigham and Women's Hospital...
) N I OO OO PSP O PO OO

Exhibit A-3 (continued)

GENERAL FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(in thousands)

{with comparative actual amounts for 2002)

2003

Original
Budgpet

265
74
125
64
12

12
74
102

56
13
788
396

Final
Budget

39
265
74
125
64
12

12
74
102

56
13
788
396

Actual

798
10,903

509
254

11
362

91
486
43

36
47
111
125
64

12
74
102

56
13
788
400

VYariance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

98

3,203
©)
(58)
®)

i1

362

91
486
43

(3)

(218)

2002
Actual

125

10

4

12

73

51

9

13

788

329
(continucd)
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Exhibit A-3 (continued)

GENERAL FUND

Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(with comparative actual amounts for 2002)

(in thousands)

2003
Variance
Original Final Favorable 2002
Classification Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

TUftS UnNiverSily...ooieieeeiee ot ecetiee st s rb e e e s sne e e saeres 113 113 58 (55 17
Scetion 2C Exempt To Table...oinininnn, 100 100 355 255 304
Boston Medical Center. .o e eresesceeeyseemeeene e smesenes 34 34 68 34 102
Musetm Of FINe ATtS...vi i s 38 38 43 5 43
Children's Hospital... 125 125 109 (16) 123
Showa........... 88 88 88 - 87
Boston College.... 215 215 215 - 212
New England Dcaconcss Hosp]ta! 42 42 42 - 42
MNew England Medical Center Hospital... 462 462 669 207 752
Boston Symphony Orchestra....c.......... 36 36 36 - 36
Boston University......covvvnin. 3,198 3,198 3,229 31 3,167
Misc PILOTS... et 620 620 59 {561) 15
Sale of Pmperty Spemal TAXES oo, 100 100 54 (46) 540
Berkeley School....iciiinionimnnonmonenon 176 176 173 3 175
Trimount Foundation............cccveiiiiiiine e 15 15 15 - 15
Harvard Community Health PIan.....ccovoiommmmmannomaenne 217 217 T 210) 217
Mass General Hospital ... 1,800 1,800 2,188 388 1,655
Harvard UniverSily. ... s 1,388 1,388 1,567 179 1,479
SUTTOTK UNIVEISIEY. . ovvvrovrien vt sae s 172 172 202 30 235
Simmons College.... 15 15 15 - 15
Northeastern Umvcrstty et a ettt 137 137 136 N 136
Misc Chapter 121A Sccnon 6A ............................................... 13,761 13,761 16,266 2,505 15,534

Revenue class total 34,123 34,123 40,909 6,786 36,332
INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest on INVESIMENTS....ooirmienirccii s 10,750 10,750 8,552 {2,198} 14,301

Revenue class total 10,750 10,750 8,552 (2,198} 14,301

{(continued)
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Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

Classification
LICENSES AND PERMITS

Building Structures and PErmits.......o..covevovivreovcrnimmnrnrnnronns
Weights and MEaSUTES. ...ocr v
Street and Curh Permits. ..o
Pre-rental Inspections........cviiiiiens i
Misc Charges-Inspectional Services..
Public Safety-Inspcetional Scrvices.,
Health Inspections........ocececveeveeenenene
Alcoholic Beverages and Licenses.
Entertainment Licenses........ouer.

Police and Protective Permits.

Professional & Occupational Licenses..
Police Firearm Permits.......ccovcvrvvvvi s vvsrinrecnnoninnsnnesnnerennens
Other Business Licenses and Permits.......ccrieieerivareisinne.
Cable TeleviSION....cieieer e reere e srer e e beens
BUTal PEMIILS . oo ceeee e te i re e et e smn e ee e

Revenue class total

TRANSFERS AND OTHER AVAILABLE FUNDS
Surplus Property Fund. ...
Appropriated Cemetery TTuste....vivveiniciinvenisime .
Appropriated Parking Meter Recgipts.....covvvenvniiiiiniinnns
Revenue class total

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Exhibit A-3 {(continued)

GENERAL FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(in thousands)

{with comparative actual amounts for 2002)

2003
Variance
Original Final Favorable 2002
Budgct Budyget Actual (Unfavarable) Actual
15,000 15,000 20,146 5,146 19,055
245 245 232 {13} 162
1,400 1,400 1,633 233 1,604
73 73 69 {4) 52
- - - - 19
130 130 22 (108} 79
1,050 1,050 1,099 49 1,116
2,400 2,400 2,280 (120} 2,303
480 430 - 507 27 503
450 450 497 47 425
70 70 85 15 78
- - 41) (41} 29
£,000 1,000 1,009 9 30
2,850 2,850 2,608 (242) 3,236
70 70 - (70} -
25218 25,218 30,146 4,928 29,651
14,876 14,376 13,000 {1,876) -
1,849 1,849 1,849 - 1,778
10,000 10,000 10,000 - 2,790
26,725 26,725 24,849 (1,876) 4,568
1,825,231 § 1,825,231 § 1,830,814 5583 % 1,788,300
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Costs of Issuance - RANS......ocnmmanmmnnn
Annual Audit Costs.... .
Mayor's QL8 ..covvrcrmim i e resnins
City COUNCILcrereeririecreene ettt st st e s,
Office of Mew Bostonians.....
Consumer Affairs and Licensing........oooov e
Office of Community Partnerships. ...
Boston 2 to 6...
Election Department Elecnon Dmsnon
Election Department - Listing Board...
Auditing Department....
Taxpayer Referrat Departmcnt & Asst Cmr
Assessing Department....
Treasury Department - (‘o]lecung Dwts:on
Treasury Department - Treasury Division...
Office of Budget Management............
Human Respurees............
Purchasing Division...
Office of Chief Opcratmg Oﬁ'cm .................................
Grraphic Arts.....ococv v

Cffice Labor Relations...
Management Information System....
Intergovernmental Relations. ........... -
Small & Local Business..........cooveievinimicnion i,
Office of Boston Residents Job Policy.
Risk Retention RESETVE.....coonv it isin
Law DEPATIINEDIL....ocoeome i ettt it s s s s v
I CLEIK oottt i st
Registry Division.......c.ce e ireereernens
Finance Commission..
Office of Civil Rights......coevveiienrieiiarinaees

Exhibit A-4

GENERAL FUND

Schedule ol Expenditures Compured to Budgel (Budgetary Basis)

Year Ended June 30, 2003
(with comparative actual amounts for 2002)
{in thousands)

2003
Variance
Original Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
500 146§ 146 - 231
600 600 600 - 50
1,694 1,694 1,511 183 1,754
3,731 3,893 3,769 124 1,534
78 78 78 - 102
440 440 392 43 434
- - - - 1,577
- - - - 485
2,503 2,805 2,447 358 2,607
504 203 Li6 87 177
1,867 1,867 [,785 82 7.947
439 439 332 167 418
5,201 5,201 4,861 340 5260
2,258 2,258 2,192 66 2,072
1,834 1,834 1,778 56 1,752
2,303 2,502 2,468 34 2,639
2,288 2,330 2,329 1 2217
1,277 1,277 1,229 43 1,250
933 933 851 82 824
1,620 1,620 1,558 62 1,583
293 918 897 21 834
14,607 14,383 13,447 936 10,175
962 962 866 96 394
626 626 580 46 648
490 490 449 41 459
1,000 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
4,994 5,319 4,910 409 5,057
915 915 364 5t 864
872 872 753 119 828
192 192 166 26 184
354 354 308 46 293

(continued)
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Emergency Shelter Commission......
Public Information............cceeenence
Neighborhood Services......cocoeeinnenseicvenen e
Special Events and Tourism..
Wormen's Commission. ... vene.
Office of Cultural AFBIrs. ..

Tregor Reserve Fund............. .
Reserve For Collective Bargaining.......ccoeeeeveiieniennnns

Function total
HUMAN SERVICES

Rental Housing Resource Center..
Boston Center/Youth & Families.
Elderly Commussion. ... cumorii i,
Veterans Services Department........c.cccoeeeiveressverenisnens
Function total

PUBLIC SAFETY

Police Department. ... iecnneneises s
Fire Department.............
Transportation - Traffic Division.
Transportation - Parking Clerk.
Licensing Board. ...
Enspectional Services Department...................
Youth Fund......ooomeeecic e
Function total

Exhibit A4 {continued}

GENERAL FUND

Schedule of Expenditures Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

Year Ended June 30, 2003
(with comparative actual amounts for 2002}
(in thousands)

2003
Variance
Original Final Favorable 2002
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
593 593 572 21 584
887 887 318 [ 822
1,083 1,083 939 144 1,031
1,075 1,075 982 93 1191
165 165 152 13 152
744 744 720 24 1,012
- 151 15t - 1,000
8,000 8,384 8,384 - 0,200
68,522 69,233 65,400 3,833 70,702
741 741 665 76 646
19,114 19,114 18,519 595 -
2,716 2,717 2,495 222 2,758
2,401 3,257 3,257 - 2,994
24,972 25,829 24,936 803 6,398
220,315 218,251 217,406 845 219,549
135,820 135,820 142,653 (6,833) 134,625
18,138 18,898 18,709 189 19,239
9,581 9,571 9,284 287 9.451
598 598 390 8 582
14,084 14,084 13,590 494 12,960
6,194 6,694 6,617 77 8,744
404,730 403,916 408,849 (4,933) 405,150

{continued)
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PUBLIC WORKS

Public Works Department........oocovvveneneoneneeiine e
Central Maintenance Facility........c.coov v
SNow Removal it

Function total
PROPERTY AND DEVELOPMENT

Property Management....................
Neighborhood Development.
Leading the Way..........
Boston Community Centers...............ooooins

PARKS AND RECREATION

Parks and Recreation Department. . ...

Environment Department.. .o e

Cemetery DivISION.. ..o s
Function total

LIBRARY

Library Department. ..o
Funetion total

SCHOOLS

Boston Fublic SEhools ..o
Function total

Exhibit A-4 (continued)

GENERAL FUND
Sechedule of Expenditures Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2003
(with comparative actual amounts for 2002)
{in thousands}

2003
Variance
Original Final Favorable 2002
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
76,103 76,103 75,188 913 68,701
2,069 2,069 1,608 461 1,719
4,370 4,370 9,504 (5,434) 4,413
82,542 82,542 86,600 (4,058} 74,833
18,265 18,866 19,061 (195) 18,957
3,797 3,196 2,683 513 7,079
13,000 13,000 13,000 - -
- - - - 15,594
35,062 35,062 34,744 318 41,630
11,920 11,920 11,909 11 12,415
1,016 1,016 990 26 981
1,849 1,849 1,781 68 1,675
14,785 14,785 14,680 105 16,071
28,008 23,008 27,726 282 28,813
28,008 28,008 27,726 282 28,813
650,026 650,618 650,601 17 639,710
650,026 650,618 650,601 17 639,710

(continued)
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PUBLIC HEALTH

Public Health Commission.

COUNTY

Suffulk County Jail

JUDGMENTS AND CLAIMS

Execution of Courts

OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Medicare PAYMENIS........ccocoiniiiisin
Human Resources-Health Insurance...
Health Benefits & Insurance........ -
Unemployment Compensation..........ooeeicnienn
Workers' Compensation Fund...............

Function total
PENSION COSTS
State - Boston Retirement SyStem....oovoveviinneens

Pensions and Annuities = City....cooeveeeevenee
Pensions and Annuities - County............

Function total

Exhihit A-4 (continued)

GENERAL FUND
Schedule of Expenditures Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2003
{with comparative actual amounts for 2002)

(in thousands)
2003
Variance
Original Final Favorable 2002
Budget Budget Actunal (Unfavorable) Actual
63,897 63,897 63,897 - 64,005
63,897 63,897 63,897 - 64,005
4,537 4,737 4,737 - 4,537
4,537 4,737 4,737 - 4,537
3,100 2,166 2,166 - 5,000
3,100 2,166 2,166 - 5,000
4,100 3,902 3902 - 3.952
585 544 486 58 497
104,357 108,927 108,927 - 99,261
50 50 - S0 5
2,000 2,000 1,849 151 3,758
111,092 115,423 115,164 259 107,473
134,425 134,425 134,425 - 129,745
4,600 4,600 4,600 - 5,008
300 300 300 - 300
139,325 130,325 139,325 - 135,710

(continued)
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DEBT REQUIREMENTS

Redemption of City Loans...........cce
City Debt and Interest Payments
Temporary NOES. ..o ssss e
MWPAT Principal..
MWPAT Interest..
BAN Interest...........

Function total
STATE & DISTRICT ASSESSMENTS
Health Insurance/Retirement.
Parking Surcharge.............
Mosquito Control Projects.......ccooeveeeeeneen
Special Education Chapter 700.......oo oo innenenenenen
Metropolitan Air Pollution Center
Metropolitan Area Planning ....
M.B.T.A. Assessments...... .
Schoo! ChoiCe. ..ot
M.D.C. ASSESSIMENtS..civiriicicremrsirinenae

Function total

Tolal Lxpenditures

Exhibit A-4 (continued)

GENERAL FUND
Schedule ot Expenditures Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2003
(with comparative actual amounts for 2002}
(in thousands)
2003
Variance
Original Final Favorable 2002
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

81,342 81,341 81,333 ] 77,233
36,385 36,385 36,385 - 36,515
5,062 - - - -
444 444 444 - 439
141 141 141 - 148
2,881 2,881 2,881 - 1,000
126,255 121,192 121,184 8 115,332
591 591 591 - 580
2,883 3,003 3,380 377 3,003
194 194 194 - 187
486 486 151 135 436
149 149 149 - 143
149 149 149 - 142
63,915 63,915 63,915 - 63,046
- - 268 (268) 171
1 11 11 - 11
68,378 68,498 69,008 (510) 67,769
1,825,231 1,825231 3§ 1.829.017 (3.780) $ 1,783,133
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

The Special Revenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources, other than
debt service, trust funds or capital projects that are legally restricted for specific purposes. This fund
accounts for a number of federal and state grants administered by the City’s individual departments.
This fund provides additional support to department programs and also accounts for money that has
been set aside, generally by state statute, that may be used to support the City’s general fund operations.
This fund is directly linked to a specific activity and is available without further City Council
Appropriation.
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit B-1

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Comparative Balance Sheets
June 30, 2003 and 2002

(in thousands)
2003 2002
ASSETS
Cash and INVESTDEIILS ... ecveeeeeeieereemceieteeesereeseeeseieeresmeerens b 67,535 % 106,093
Receivables (net):
Intergovernmental.............c.coccviniiierersicnn e 83,769 56,301
Departmental and other.........ccocoiiiiinricea 163 195
Total receivables.........cooo ot 83,934 56,496
Due from other funds..........coveiicirrr s e rvrrraeneaeen. 1,044 -
TOta]l ASSEES - eeeeeeeeee et s et resasasssseseenssesrenees D 152,513 % 162,589
LIABILITIES
Warrants and accounts payable.......ccccvorrnvnninincciennns by 9230 % 14,597
Accrued liabilities:
L7111 SO UURSST 31,557 27,281
Due to component UNMS...........cccoooiiinnie 214 -
Total Habilities........cc.ocvvvieiievsriisiererereseessneseearanenane 41,001 41,878
FUND BALANCE
Reserved for:
Encumbrances and other........coovicieieeeceee e 49,019 44,111
Unreserved:
Undesignated.........oooooiiiiiie e 62,493 76,600
Total fund balance .......ccocevverierivninirieesir e 111,512 120,711
Total liabilities and fund balance......ccccevvvvvvcvvcrvcvcccee. 3 152,513 $ 162,589
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit B-2

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Years Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002
(in thousands)

2003 2002
REVENUES:
1 (L F OO O S P 19 § 44
INVESTMENT ICOIMNE. ... vivireeeririrer i rrs e s e cre it vsrrnernrenses 479 159
Licenses and permils.......c.ccoicineeiiiciin e 57 252
Departmental and other revenue............oceveeeveeveieciieecree e 13,170 10,478
Intergovernmental TEVENNES. .......ceoivrveecieeeeiie e, 311,347 334,961
TOtal FEVEIIUES. ....coevcverererrereieniereeeoreevreeserineenernssesrssneeses 325,072 345,894
EXPENDITURES:
Current operations:
General GOVEIMIMENT. ....ocvieieeereceeeeererr e ceeeren e eacre e e 8,385 7,131
HUIMAM SETVICES. ..ii et iiieeieesteiesseressesmresassseraessarasesessansnressas 7,231 5,290
Public SAFELY...cv oot 23,119 21,888
Public Works. ...t 186 407
Property & development.........ccooeoiriineiniecice e 63,851 63,081
Parks and reCTeatON......eiviciieirer e cereesr s e e e sre s 831 356
JI L -1 o OSSO USSR 5,186 5,261
SOOI e rcesir s as e b s bt e e e et aae s sbeaaas 131,383 130,162
COUILY .ottt r v e st e et rra e st e s srees e rnessrenes 96,452 104,754
Dbt SEEVICE. i icveiietcercte it ee e eerera e reaerene 13,841 3,804
Total expenditures. ... 350,465 342,264
Excess of revenues over expendifures.........co.oevvnesneeeeens (25,393) 3,630
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Long-term debt and capital leases issued.................ccceerene. 4,094 -
Premiums on long-term debt issued.............coiveiivieeinnn 12,100 3,835
Total other financing SOUICES ... .o 16,194 3,839
Net change in fund balances.....................c.o e, {9,199 7,469
Fund balance, beginning of year...........ccocovvciicieeciniiceciesenn, 120,711 113,242
Fund balance, end of year..........ccoooovoeieecececeeeeeeee b 111,512 % 120,711
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

This fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities. Such resources are derived principally from proceeds of general obligation
bonds and from federal and state grants. The use of a capital projects fund is especially common for
major capital acquisition or construction activities financed through borrowings or contributions.
Unless there is a legal requirement to use a capital projects fund, the use of the capital projects fund

type is permitted rather than required.
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit C-1

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets
June 30, 2003 and 2002

(in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and investments.......cccocveeiveeerceevierennen.
Cash and investments held by trustees...........
Due from other funds.........oocoireeeiieinie,

Total assets..ccviivireee e e

LIABILITIES

Warrants and accounts payable..........cccoee..e.
Other liabilities......corvveeeomnvccmecnirecerccnees
Total liabilities........cocveieiiieiiiiii

FUND BALANCE

Reserved for:

Encumbrances and other.......ocovvvvevvvvieninen.
Future appropriations.........cccceveeeevieeeeeeeecennen,

Unreserved:

Undesignated (deficit).........occoooeeinnnenne.
Total fund balance........ccccoveeeerinvrreennnen.

Total liabilities and fund balance...................

S

2003 2002
62,761 $ 80,537
3,788 3,745
101 -
66,650 $ 84,282
9,845 § 9,593
35 35
9,880 9,628
84,184 112,020
42,875 55,874
(70,289) {93,240)
56,770 74,654
66,650 § 84,282
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit C-2

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Years Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002
(in thousands)

2003

2002

REVENUES:
Departmental and other..........coceiveieieriieeeiee e enreranees B -
JOergovernmMental.... ... i 13,095

s

8,649
13,609

TOA] TEVEIUES .. emvvvseeeeseoeeesseseeseseeesseeseee e s s ee e seeseee e n s s e 13,093

22,258

EXPENDITURES:
Capital OULIAYS ... e e 164,891
DIt SEIVICE. « . e crreiirrrrt s rre e s e vr e sre e e rr v n e e ea £ reseerrn et ea et g ey apnee e s rerns 25,000

139,593

Total eXPEnditures......occoe e e 189,891

139,593

Deficiency of revenues over eXpenditures..........oovvcennnieiinoninn, (176,796)

(117,335)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Long-term debt and capital leases issued........cocoovviiiic i i, 304,440
Payments to escrow agent to refund debt...........oo {130,740)
Transfers out.........cc..... (14,788)

170,915

Total other financing SOUNCES.......ccov i i 158,912

179,915

SPECIAL ITEM:
Proceeds from sale of capital assets...................oo -

13,300

Net change in fund balances.........coovee e (17,884)

Fund balance, beginning of year.........ccoovevn e 74,654

66,880

7,774

Fund balance, end of year. ... e B 56,770 §

74,654
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Other Governmental Funds are those funds that are not defined as major funds.

Permanent Fund, established by GASB Statement No. 34, the fund 1s used to report resources that are
legally restricted to the extent that only earmings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that
support the reporting government’s programs, that is, for the benefit of the government or its citizenry.

The permanent fund is composed of the following pools:

Pool#l1 is used for the maintenance and improvement of the City’s parks and cemeteries and the
erection and maintenance of statues and monuments for the use and enjoyment of City residents.

Pool#2 is used for scholarship awards, the purchase of educational equipment and the aid of needy
students.
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Exhibit D-1

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2003
(with comparative totals for 2002)
{in thousands)
o
[
Total Other <
Permanent Funds Governmental Funds 9..
Pool 1 Pool 2 2003 2002 jo1]
ASSETS 2
- 7]
o Cash and investments held by trustees............o.. $ 41459 § 622 § 42,081 $ 43,789 >
o Receivables, NEt. ... rires i ires s seesisssneins 162 2 164 - =
TOtAl ASSELS..veruirvesmreenrirrereinssressssreessvens $ 41,621 % 624 § 42245 % 43,789 g
2
LIABILITIES ‘c;}-
Warrants and accounts payable.......c.occoovvevenenas b3 446 § 4 3 450 $ 16 §
Total liabilities....ccccrevirinnniininrenenn 446 4 450 16 7]
FUND BALANCE
Reserved for encumbrances..........ooevvveeiinnnn, 176 - 176 -
Undesignated, reported in permanent funds........ 40,999 620 41,619 43,773
Total fund balance........cocociieveminresinenan. 41,175 620 41,795 43,773

Total liabilities and fund balance............ 5 41,621 § 624 § 42245 % 43,789
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Exhibit D-2

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ended June 30, 2003
(with comparative totals for 2002)

{(in thousands)

Total Other
Permanent Funds Governmental Funds
Pool 1 Pool 2 2003 2002

REVENUES:

INveStMENt INCOMIC......ioiiimerenrer vt e vt vt s e eraaans 5 58 % 2 3 60 § 113

Departmental and other. ..o 4,080 56 4,136 1,016

TOMA] TEVEITUES 11 1eterteri s srrinsrriie e bien st e tesssassbsinssesrsens 4,138 58 4,196 1,729

EXPENDITURES:

General SOVETTIMENL. ...vvv v v sres s s ras s rees s vans e 4,257 68 4,325 6,284

Total expenditures. ... 4,257 68 4,325 6,284
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures........oeeveveneeene (119 (10) (129) (4,555)
OTHER FINANCING (USES) SOURCES:

Transfers QUL........ooovicii e {1,849) - (1,849) (1,778)
Total other financing (USES) SOUICES....occ.vveeeriieecrreirrieenne {1,849) - (1,849 (1,778)
Deficiency of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other financing uses......... (1,968) (10) (1,978) (6,333)

Fund balance, beginning of year........ccccoveevviivnivicninvrinienn 43,143 630 43,773 50,106
Fund balance, end 0f Year..co v 5 41,175 § 620 § 41,795 3 43,773
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

Internal Service Fund accounts for the City’s self insurance for health benefits provided by Blue
Cross/Blue Shield for City employees, their dependents and retirees. The Internal Service Fund 1s
included in the governmental activities columns in the government-wide statements.
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit E-1

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
Comparative Statements of Net Assets
June 30, 2003 and 2002
(in thousands)

2003 2002
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents....................... $ 14,133 12,052
Recelvables, NElo ... eeceeecnneeeeeene oo 279 151
Due from other funds..............ccooiieviieeciienen, 620 727
Other assets...oooeee i errrernrae e e e 240 1,606
Total aSSELS..ceiivviiiiciccireeee e e ee e ee e e $ 15,272 14,536
LIABILITIES
Warrants and accounts payable..........ccoccoeeneeen. $ 17 25
Accrued Habilities. ..o e 7,325 7,051
Total liabilities........cocvovvvverveeerreeeeeeeeeeee. 7.342 7,076
NET ASSETS
Unrestricteq. ... oovivinrircinerrerereecre v eseeeesmeeeeneees 7,930 7,460
Total net assets...coocceeiierccceeerceree e e 3 7,930 7,460
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit E-2

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002
(in thousands)

2003 2002
REVENUES:
Employer contribttions.. .......coooeiviciccinnnnece e 3 53,853 § 53,042
Employee contribUtions. ... vecer e seneseesenans 18,773 18,367
Miscellaneous 167 510
Total operating revemues. ... iieenirisreriarversnranie 72,793 71,919
EXPENSES:
Health benefits.......cooociiii e, 72,323 64,767
Total operating exXpenses. ..o eeeeeeceereeeceeeicee e 72,323 64,767
Changes in Nel asSetS. i e e 470 7,152
Net assets, beginning of year.........coovvvvrivcinvcniccveriennn. 7,460 308
Net assets end of Year.......couivcerveerecienreriesiescsianesesvenns $ 7930 % 7,460
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit E-3

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002
(in thousands)

2003 2002

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from CUSTOMETS......cooveceervieveiveeeeesee e $ 72,498 § 71,307
Other cash received.....oviieeeere e e e 167 510
Cash paid to vendors......cc.cccceernirmresciniee e (70,584) {67.479)

Net cash provided by operating activities............. 2,081 4,338
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year................... 12,052 7,714
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year.............c.cc.cccoecn, $ 14,133 $ 12,052

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
OpeTating IMCOMEC. ......oueeeerieaeieeereesaesressesasnerenaserseasesasssens $ 470 % 7,152
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable.. ... (128) (102)
Intergovernmental receivables.........c..cc.coveieeinen - 170
1111 o LT 1SS 1,366 -
Due to/from other funds......oomivvreienmcnren e 107 64
Accounts payable..............ccoeiiiinnnns e ecree b 274 3
Other acerued labilities. .o (8) (2,949)
Net cash provided by operating activities............. $ 2,081 $ 4,338

92




City of Boston, Massachusetts

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

State-Boston Retirement System is a defined benefit contributory retirement plan covering employees
of the City of Boston and Suffolk County, Boston Public Health Commission, Boston Housing
Authority, Boston Redevelopment Authority and the Boston Water and Sewer Commission. The system
1s subject to benefit provisions and financing requirements set forth primarily in Chapter 32 of the
Massachusetts General Laws.

Boston Retirement System is the independent contributory plan system available exclusively to City of
Boston employees who were employed prior to October 1, 1946.

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

Established by GASB Statement No. 34, these funds are to report resources that are legally restricted to
the extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support specific
individuals and do not serve to reduce the resources the City would otherwise have raised to pay for the
expenditures.

Pool#l 1s used for the maintenance and improvement of the City’s parks and cemeteries and the
erection and maintenance of statues and monuments for the use and enjoyment of City residents.

Pool#2 is used for scholarship awards, the purchase of educational equipment and the aid of needy
students.

Pool#5 is formed by the will of George R. White dated May 21, 1920. The will requires that the Fund’s
income be used for the creation of public utility and beauty for the use and enjoyment of the inhabitants
of the City.

Pool#7 is a co-mingled investment fund of various non-testamentary trust funds of the City of Boston.
The non-expendable portion of the fund is composed of donations/contributions from either individuals
or organizations. Donations/contributions are to be expended in conformity with their respective trust
instruments.

AGENCY FUND

Law Enforcement Trust Fund accounts for proceeds from property seized from illegal drug related
activities. Funds can be used to defray the costs of protracted investigations, to provide technical
equipment or expertise and provide matching funds for federal grants.
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit F-}

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2003

(with comparative totals for 2002)

(in thousands)

Employee Retirement Plans

State-Boston Boston Total
Retirement Retirement Employee
System System Retirement Plans
ASSETS
Cash and INVESHNENIS. .......ccooooivi s enree 3 2,851,181 15 2,851,196
Receivahles:
Interest and dividends.............occoo it ieee e e 16,783 - 16,783
Securities 501 187,033 - 187,033
Other ... 78,815 - 78,815
Total Teceivables. ..o eee e emee s 282,631 - 282,631
Due from primiary governmen.............. - 14 14
Capital assets, net of accumulated deprecnatlon - - -
TOA] ASSELS.....ovecveeccec e s ra e erenre B 3,133,812 29 3,133,841
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable.... ISPV ROURUOPPURTOROITRY. 10,686 1 10,687
Securities purchased 259,448 i 259449
Cotlateral held on securities 1endmg 190,801 - 190,301
Refunds payable and other............cooo oo - - -
Total labilities.. .....cccocvicinviiieicnrsaneersens 460,935 2 460,937
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits and
Other PUIPOSES....cov e rene e crensrenecrees B 2,672,877 27 2,672,504
(Contmued)
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Private Purpose Trust Funds

Pool 1 Pool 2 Pool 5 Pool 7
17,879 § 438 23,475 33,376
94 6 95 808
94 0 95 868
- - 30 -
17,973  § 444 23,600 34,244
319 % 2 300 1,434
319 2 300 1,434
17,654 § 442 23,300 32,810
(Continued)
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit F-1 (continued)

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2003
{with comparative totals for 2002)
{in thousands)

Agency Fund
Total Eaw Total
Private Purpose Enforcement Fiduciary Funds
Trust Funds Trust Fund 2003 2002
ASSETS
Cash and INvestments... ...c....oocoom e e ccreseoresrscmeisies 75,168 § 2,802 % 2,926,364 % 3,197,619
Receivables:
Inierest and dividends...........ocooniiii - - 16,783 6,800
Intergovernmental.... ... - - 187,033 -
OMRET. et 1,063 - 79,878 67,131
Total receivables... 1,063 - 283,694 73,931
Due from primary govemment - - 14 64,871
Capital assets, net of accumu]ated deprec:anon 30 - 30 30
TOLA] ASSELS..vvvvrvcreececercrecie s veeis e s ccmeicnns B 76,261 § 2,802 % 3,210,102 3,336,451
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable.........coovviivs e B 2055 % - 3 12,742 & 10,835
Securities purchased - - 259,449 271,714
Collateral held on securities lendmg - - 190,801 -
Refunds payable and other.........cooioiivconncccnicennienes - 2,802 2,802 -
Total liabihities. ... 2,055 2,802 465,794 282,549
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits and
OLher PUIPOSES.....eovvirier et sreeens B 74,206 & - 3 2,747,110 % 3,053,902
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit F-2

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
Combining Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets
Year Ended June 30, 2003
(with comparative totals for 2002)

(in thousands}

State-Boston Boston
Retirement Retirement Totals
System System 2003 2002

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:

Employer.... 156,214 - $ 156,214 § 150,061

Employee. .. 99,701 12 99,713 89,844
Inferest. .......cc.oveee. 75,609 1 75,610 70,852
Intergovernmental......ooovivvermsriinsns eesremenceens 24,315 - 24,315 24,127
Realized and unrealized losses on investment................ccocoomeee.. {369,731) - {369,731) (252,989)
Management and related fees.....oovmiviericveceeece (8,921) - (8.921) (8,120}

Total AAAIIONS ... .cvcveee e e eeeeceree s e eces seeea e e e anes (22,813) 13 (22,300 73,775
DEDUCTIONS:
ADIINESITAHON. oo ettt sae et eernans 2,267 1 2,268 2,135
BenEITLS ..ottt ettt ere bt st eane bt eneta et ae 259,119 50 259,169 240,676
Reimbursements to other systems. 7.819 - 7.819 7,299
Refunds of contributions... 12,967 - 12,967 12,936
BOITOWET TEDATES. ... .evvirvvsiversasersarrreirrrevrsrersrerersseaee s e e eem e n e eanees 3,020 - 3,020 8,445

Total deductions.. 285,192 51 285,243 271,491
Changes in net assets..... (308,005) 38 (308,043) (197,716)

Net assets, beginning of Year. ..o oo 2,980,882 65 2,980,947 3,178,663
Net assets, end of YEAT.....cocriiivrcriranenmreserne s srececesmees o svenecons B 2672877 % 27 % 2,672,904 § 2,980,947
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ADDITIONS:

IRVeStMEnt INCOME. .....ooeevieceeee e v rbe e

Realized and unrcalized losses on investments................

Departmental and other revenue.........c..ccocomvecviinnnnns
Total Operating revenues. ... co.ovvvveevereveereveeressanens

DEDUCTIONS:
Administrative and general ...,
Total operating expenses

Net (decrease) increase in net assels.......c.ocoveeeneeen.

Net assets, beginning of year........cocieieniincnnn

Net assets, end of Year.....ivuevimensene e

Exhibit F-3

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended June 30, 2003
{with comparative totals for 2002)

(in thousands)
Total
Private Purpose
Trust Funds
Pool 1 Pool 2 Pool 5 Pool 7 2003 2002

23 3 2 % 52 3 395 472 % 4,238
1,456 45 2,450 14,956 18,907 (1,864}

2 49 135 680 817 13,725

1,481 96 2,637 16,031 20,196 16,100

2,746 46 3,689 12,464 18,945 15,241

2,746 46 3,689 12,464 18,945 15,241

(1,265) 1 (1,052) 3,567 1,251 859

18,919 441 24,352 29,243 72,955 72,006

17,654 % 442 § 23,300 § 32,810 74,206 § 72,955
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